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Dear Kaba Shareholder

In the financial year 1999/2000, Kaba once again succeeded in substantially increasing the consolidated profit:
in this year by 25% from CHF 27.7 million to CHF 34.5 m. Since going public in 1995/96, Kaba has achieved a
constant growth in profit of an average of 22.5% per share annually. The operating earnings rose in the year under review by 34% to CHF 546.8 million, whereby the net proceeds from net sales increased nominally by CHF
132.4 million or 33.6% compared with the previous year to CHF 526.5 million. CHF 84.9 million of this are attributable to the first time consolidation of new Group companies, mainly the British door system companies. After
adjustments for fluctuations in currency rates, the internal growth in the comparable extent of consolidation
amounts to CHF 44.7 million or 11.3%.
The turnaround of the British door system companies taken over on 1 July 1999 was quickly put in hand and is
already producing positive contributions. The rapid internationalisation will give Kaba important growth impulses
in future, too. From this result new possibilities for strengthening the yield so that also in future we will certainly
achieve our ambitious profit objectives. At the same time, thanks to the high free cash flow in the past financial
year, we have already financially coped with the integration of the British acquisitions and are thus once again
equipped in the balance sheet for new growth steps.
International investors particularly are increasingly perceiving the Kaba share as technology stock. In the year under review, investors have rewarded our entrepreneurial successes with an advance in the price of the Kaba share
of 156%. In view of the encouraging development in the past and the good prospects for the future, the Board is
proposing to declare an increased dividend of CHF 15.60 per share for the past financial year (in the previous
year: CHF 12.50).
Mr Thomas Zimmermann is standing for re-election at the coming General Meeting. On the other hand, Mr Ulrich
Bremi is retiring from the Board on reaching the age limit. In the name of the shareholders, the employees and
the friends of the Kaba Group, we would like to thank Ulrich Bremi for the many and decisive things which he has
done for the Kaba Group during nearly 40 years. From 1962 to 1990 he transformed the small former Bauer AG
into the market leader in Switzerland and then opened the borders to Europe and overseas. For a long time the
equation was: Kaba is Ulrich Bremi, and Ulrich Bremi is Kaba. It is difficult to put an appreciation of his achievement into words: Ulrich Bremi, thank you very much indeed!
At the ordinary General Meeting, the Board will propose Mr Rudolf Hauser, born on 8 February 1937 for election
as a new member of the Board of Kaba Holding AG. Mr Rudolf Hauser is Vice President and delegate of the
Board of Bucher Industries AG, Niederweningen, and also runs this company as the chairman of Group Management (see page 8).
We would like to thank our employees for their decisive contributions to the increased profit reported. They all deserve our special thanks.

Rümlang, September 2000

Sincerely yours,
Kaba Holding AG

Creed Kuenzle

Ulrich Graf

President of the Board

Delegate of the Board
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Information for Investors

per June 30 (in CHF million)

1998/99

1997/98

1996/97

229.9
75.4%

131.1
3.8%

126.3
–

n.c.
n.c.

n.c.
n.c.

155.1
6.5%

145.7
3.8%

140.3
22.4%

114.6
–

n.c.
n.c.

Access and Time Management Systems
Growth in % vs previous year

141.5
20.6%

117.3
17.8%

99.6
–

n.c.
–

n.c.
–

Total net Sales
Growth in % vs previous year

526.5
33.6%

394.1
7.6%

366.2
11.5%

328.5
55.8%

210.9
– 0.9%

546.8

408.1

376.0

332.8

217.1

70.0
12.8%

56.4
13.8%

49.8
13.2%

41.8
12.6%

28.0
12.9%

Earnings before Interest and Tax (EBIT)
EBIT in % of Operating revenues

52.8
9.6%

41.3
10.1%

35.0
9.3%

28.6
8.6%

18.5
8.5%

Net income for the year
In % of Operating revenues

34.5
6.3%

27.7
6.8%

22.1
5.9%

17.4
5.2%

14.0
6.4%

Total assets

366.1

331.6

316.1

289.0

210.5

Shareholders’ equity
In % of Total assets
Return on Equity (ROE)

114.9
31.4%
30.0%

117.9
35.6%
23.5%

104.0
32.9%
21.3%

75.1
26.0%
23.2%

108.3
51.4%
12.9%

Net debt
In % of Shareholders’ equity

81.8
71.2%

90.0
76.3%

73.0
70.2%

104.5
139.1%

11.4
10.5%

Net operating assets
Growth in % vs previous year
Return on net operating assets (RONOA)

191.7
3.9%
27.5%

184.5
7.3%
22.4%

172.0
0.2%
20.3%

171.7
52.1%
16.7%

112.9
– 3.3%
16.4%

Net cash provided by operating activities
Net cash used in investing activities
Divestments

46.9
– 21.4
10.6

27.3
– 17.2
5.0

30.2
– 15.9
9.6

34.5
– 11.2
1.4

21.0
– 12.5
0.8

36.1

15.1

23.9

24.7

9.3

7.0

6.5

5.4

4.6

3.5

561 250
61.47
24.6%

561 250
49.35
25.3%

561 250
39.40
16.1%

512 500
33.95
24.3%

512 500
27.32
– 6.1%

Market Capitalization at year end

1 179

461

435

297

249

Employees (average)

2 699

2 135

2 079

1 894

1 300

Door Systems
Growth in % vs previous year
Mechanical and Electromechanical Locks
Growth in % vs previous year

Operating revenues
Earnings before Interest, Tax, Depreciation
and Amortization (EBITDA)
EBITDA in % of Operating revenues

Free Cash flow (net) before dividend
Dividend payment
Unified registered shares1) at CHF 40 par value
Earnings per share (verwässert gerechnet)
Growth earnings per share

1999/2000

) Until 1997 restated as for Registered shares, Series B, CHF 40 par value
) Initial public offering as at December 6, 1995; new shares eligible for dividends retroactively to September 1.

1
2

4

1995/962)

n.c. = not comparable

1999/2000

1998/99

1997/98

1996/97

1995/962)

–

440 000

440 000

561 250

561 250

292 500

292 500

Share data 1)
Series A registered shares at CHF 20.–3) par value

No.

Registerd shares (former series B)
at CHF 40.–3) par value

No. 561 250

Par value of average outstanding shares

CHF million

22.5

22.5

21.8

20.5

18.9

Par value of year-end outstanding shares

CHF million

22.5

22.5

22.5

20.5

20.5

No.

1 595

1 350

1 355

1 612

2 068

(former series B) (Group)

CHF

92.12

76.26

65.75

59.70

45.85

EBIT per share (former series B) ( Group)

CHF

94.08

73.59

62.35

55.80

36.10

Earnings per share (former series B) ( Group)

CHF

61.47

49.35

39.40

33.95

27.32

25%

25%

16%

24%

– 6%

15.60

12.50

11.50

10.50

9.00

25%

25%

29%

31%

33%

Shareholders as at June 30

Figures per share
Profit and amortization per share

Growth in Earnings per share in %

Gross dividend per share (former series B) 4)

CHF

Payout ratio in % of consolidated earnings

Equity per share (former series B) ( Group)

CHF

205

210

185

147

211

Price per share (former series B)

high

CHF

2 190

850

775

605

645

low

CHF

790

560

476

485

442

December 31

CHF

1 450

675

510

480

600

June 30

CHF

2 100

821

775

580

485

high

CHF million

1 229

477

435

310

331

low

CHF million

443

314

267

249

227

June 30

CHF million

1 179

461

435

297

308

in % of equity

% 1 026%

391%

418%

395%

284%

in % of sales

%

224%

117%

116%

89%

142%

low

%

0.7%

1.5%

1.5%

1.7%

1.4%

high

%

2.0%

2.2%

2.4%

2.2%

2.0%

Market capitalization

Dividend yield (former series B)

)
)
)
4
)
1
2
3

Including minority interests.
Initial public offering as at December 6, 1995; new shares eligible for dividends retroactively to September 1.
1997/98 creation of common share; unified registered shares.
1999/2000 proposal to Annual Meeting of Shareholders.
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Information for Investors (cont.)

Schedule

25.9.2000

Financial press conference
Analysts presentation
Mailing of annual report 1999/2000

24.10.2000

Annual Meeting of Shareholders

27.10.2000

Maturity dividend
Trade ex dividend

March 2001

Letter to shareholders, mid-year

24.9.2001

Letter to shareholders, year-end
Financial press conference
Analysts presentation
Mailing of annual report 2000/2001

Evolution of share rates

23.10.2001

Annual Meeting of Shareholders

(January 1999 – August 2000)
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Kaba Holding AG

Investor Relations

Ticker-Symbols

Hofwisenstrasse 24

Dr. Werner Stadelmann

Security number 72 654

CH-8153 Rümlang

Chief Financial Officer

Telekurs KABN

Telephone ++41 1 818 90 11

Telephone ++41 1 818 90 61

Reuters KABZn

Telefax ++ 41 1 818 90 52
http://www.kaba.com

Share register

E-Mail: investor@kaba.com

Esther Zimmermann
Telephone ++41 1 818 90 71
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Transfer and voting right provisions
Shareholders shall be registered

The Board of Directors may sus-

the Federal Law on the Acquisition

with a maximum of 5% of the share

pend the voting rights of new

of Real Estate by Foreign Nationals.

capital. Shares held in custody shall

shareholders to the extent that and

At the time of printing, no share-

not be registered. The voting rights

as long as, pursuant to the informa-

holders were subject to this limita-

for any single shareholder are lim-

tion available to the Company, the

tion of registration.

ited to 5% of the aggregate votes.

recognition of foreign shareholders

Shareholders registered prior to the

might hinder the submission of evi-

date of the initial public offering are

dence stipulated by Swiss Federal

exempt from this limitation.

Law, particularly in conjunction with

Shareholder Groups of Kaba Holding AG:
Shareholder Group

Unified Registered shares
as at 30.6.2000

as at 30.6.1999

No. of shares

No. of shares

at CHF 40 par value

in %

at CHF 40 par value

in %

Public

307 021

55 %

300 686

54%

Successors Leo Bodmer

237 686

42%

241 206

43%

16 543

3%

19 358

3%

561 250

100%

561 250

100%

84 338

15%

87 634

16%

Current Management
Total share capital
thereof Members of the Board (excl. family)

We are aware of the following shareholders, who each own more than 5% of the voting rights:
30.6.2000

30.6.1999

Forrer Karin

9.95%

9.95%

Bremi Ulrich

7.43%

7.43%

Kuenzle Creed

5.68%

5.68%

In May 1998, Henderson Investors,

cording to a statement dated April

pany which belongs to the AMP in-

London, complied with the Swiss

26, 2000, Henderson Investors

surance group of Australia. Hender-

Exchange Law and announced that

owns 9.92% of Kaba. Henderson is

son has stated that it pursues pure-

it holds 5.29% of Kaba shares. Ac-

a British asset management com-

ly financial objectives.
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Board and Management
Kaba Holding AG

Board

Tenure of Office

Creed Kuenzle, Chairman

until 2001

Ulrich Bremi, Vice-Chairman

until 2001

Ulrich Graf, Delegate and CEO

until 2002

Gerhard Zeidler

until 2002

Thomas Zimmermann

until 2000

Rudolf W. Weber

until 2001

At the Annual General Meeting of

1937, as a new member of the

Chief Executive Officer. Mr Hauser

October 24, 2000, Mr Ulrich Bremi

Board of Directors of Kaba Holding

is also vice president of the Board

will resign as a member of the

AG. Mr Rudolf Hauser is a Swiss

of Directors of Rieter Holding AG

Board of Directors, having reached

citizen. He lives in the Zürich area,

and member of the Board of Direc-

the respective age limit. The Board

holds the positions of a vice presi-

tors of Feldschlösschen-Hürlimann

proposes to the afore mentioned

dent and delegate of the Board of

Holding AG as well as of AG für die

Annual General Meeting to elect Mr

Directors of Bucher Industries AG,

Neue Zürcher Zeitung. Mr Hauser is

Rudolf Hauser, born on February 8,

Niederweningen, where he serves as

also member of the Bank Council of
the Swiss National Bank and holds
the position of a Treasurer as a
member of the Executive Committee of Swissmem (ASM/VSM; Association of Swiss Engineering Employers and Swiss Association of
Machinery Manufacturers).

Group Management (from left to right)
Ulrich Graf

President of the Executive Committee and CEO

Sönke Bandixen

COO, Door Systems

Ulrich Wydler

COO, Access and Time Management Systems

Heribert Allemann

COO, Mechanical and Electromechanical Locks

Dr. Werner Stadelmann

Chief Financial Officer

Auditors
PricewaterhouseCoopers Ltd, Zurich
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Report on the Financial Year 1999 / 2000

The last financial year fulfilled our own expectations. Once again, the

27.3 million in the previous year),

profit per share of 24.5% (in the previous year 25.3%) rose by over

but also to the sale of two pieces of

20%. Since going public in 1995/96, Kaba has achieved a steady

real estate no longer required for

growth in profit of 22.5% on average per share per annum. Our core

operating purposes (influx of funds

activities in the “Total Access” market are a powerful combination of

of CHF 8.5 million).

a highly profitable business in security components and a rapidly
growing high-tech segment. Based on the solid EBIT margin that is

In the year under review, the oper-

still getting stronger and a high free cash flow, Kaba is ready for

ating earnings climbed by CHF

future internal and external growth.

138.7 million or 34.0% from CHF
408.1 million in the previous year to

The earnings before interest and

increase the EBIT margin to12% of

CHF 546.8 million. Consolidated

taxes (EBIT) increased by CHF 11.5

the operating earnings. On the one

sales increased compared with the

million or 27.8% from CHF 41.3 mil-

hand, the improved profitability of

previous years by CHF 132.4 mil-

lion to CHF 52.8 million. In the mid-

the British door companies will

lion or 33.6% from CHF 394.1 mil-

year statement on 31st December

contribute considerably towards

lion to CHF 526.5 million. CHF 84.9

1999 we had still forecast a drop in

this in the next three to five years.

million of this growth in turnover is

the EBIT margin of 1% (yield from

On the other hand, the internal

attributable as acquired growth to

operating activities in percent of

growth in the other Group sectors

the consolidation for the first time

operating earnings) from 10.1% in

with a simultaneous improvement

of new companies, with the British

the previous year to 9.1%. On bal-

of the processes will contribute to

door companies contributing most

ance now, however, a solid EBIT

the rise.

with CHF 76.9 million. A further
CHF 8 million come from the take-

margin of 9.6% has been achieved.
The additional turnover of the newly

Internal and external growth

over of what is now Kaba Benzing

acquired British companies (CHF

dynamic

in Vienna and from the new joint

76.9 million) did, it is true, put pres-

In its “Total Access” market, Kaba

venture Kaba Boyd in Australia.

sure on the EBIT margin as their

builds on the basis of its unique

profitability was clearly below the

combination of a highly profitable

The weakening of the Swiss franc

Group average. Nevertheless, at

business in security components

predominantly against Asian cur-

the end of the fiscal year, the British

and rapidly growing high-tech ac-

rencies has increased the proceeds

door

were

tivities. The free cash flow (CH 36.1

from turnover in the earlier extent of

already contributing to the group

million) of the Kaba Group has more

consolidation by an additional CHF

results thanks to the immediately

than doubled compared with the

2.8 million or by 0.7%. After adjust-

undertaken turnaround measures.

previous year (CHF 15.1 million).

ments to take account of currency

What is more, the performance of

This is attributable firstly to the

fluctuations Kaba grew in the year

the other Kaba companies did con-

powerful growth in funds coming

under review by CHF 44.7 million or

tinue to clearly improve. In the next

from the provision of services (CHF

11.3% in a comparable extent of

few years, we want to continuously

46.9 million compared with CHF

consolidation.

systems

activities

9

such as Singapore or Hong Kong.

Whereas sales in the access and

many – thus in the other EU and

time management sectors, as well

EEA countries – experienced an ex-

as door systems in the comparable

pansion compared with the previ-

Turnaround in Great Britain on

scope of consolidation, and taking

ous year of CHF 76.9 million or

the path to success

account of currency fluctuations,

81%. At the same time the invoic-

The multiple acquisition on 1st July

rose disproportionately by 17.7%

ing by our companies in these

1999 included three companies in

and 16.9% respectively, the locks

countries also increased strongly

the Industrial Doors Division of

and locking systems sector im-

through their own efforts by CHF

Stratagem Group as well as Adtek.

proved by 1.2% in real terms. This

15.8 million or a further 17%. If

Adtek emerged from the European

sector once again made the great-

47% of the turnover was still being

marketing organization of the Stan-

est

Kaba

generated in Switzerland in the pre-

ley corporation. Stanley is the mar-

Group's earnings before interest

vious year, in the year under review

ket leader in the USA for automatic

and taxes (EBIT) and also achieved

it was now only 37%. The share at-

door systems. Under the Hender-

the highest EBIT margin (yield from

tributable to the rest of Europe

son-Bostwick name, the acquired

operating activities in percent of

without Switzerland climbed ac-

companies have the largest blanket

operating revenue).

cordingly from 49% to 58%. The ef-

coverage service and repair organi-

fects of this internationalization

zation for door systems in Great

Swift internationalization

were not just limited to Europe: The

Britain, employing some 150 serv-

The take-over of the British compa-

experience in Great Britain also

ice technicians at 7 bases offering a

nies on 1st July 1999 strengthened

strengthens Kaba's position in oth-

24-hour telephone service (call cen-

Kaba's market position not only in

er Anglo-Saxon thinking regions –

ter). Hufcor produces and markets

contribution

to

the

movable partitions for railway sta-

Great Britain but also in the Netherlands, Italy and France through the
foreign branches of Adtek pur-

Ulrich Graf, President of the Executive Committee and CEO

tion platforms, hotels and office
buildings.

chased at the same time. At one

10

stroke, Kaba became the market

Under the Garog name, compo-

leader for door systems in Great

nents bought world-wide for auto-

Britain. This strong position now al-

matic door systems are sold cut to

so makes it easier for the other two

measure for door and gate manu-

divisions to open up the British

facturers. After the take-over, Kaba

market. The multiple acquisition of

is using this unaltered powerful

the British door companies has

market organization now also for

made Kaba into an important play-

the indirect marketing of all Kaba

er outside of German-speaking Eu-

components and products. Kaba

rope, too. The share of turnover,

had already been represented pre-

which Kaba generates in Europe,

viously in Great Britain by Kaba

apart from Switzerland and Ger-

Camor, which marketed security

doors from Kaba Gallenschütz as

brought the Kaba Group an addi-

well as automatic doors from Kaba

tional turnover of CHF 76.9 million

Gilgen.

and initially some 480 new employees. As on the settlement date,

In order to utilize the synergies

30.6.2000, 381 people were still on

quickly, the other door activities in

the payroll of Kaba Door Systems,

Great Britain were merged as from

including Garog. The former Adtek

1st July 1999 into the new compa-

manager heads these companies.

ny Kaba Door Systems whereby the

Otherwise, in the first year of be-

established brands remained. Kaba

longing to the Group, practically the

offers customers door systems for

whole of the former management of

the front and rear sides of a build-

the three companies taken over

ing from one hand, such as security

from Stratagem has been replaced.

and

air-conditioning

As at the end of February 2000,

protection

doors, rotating and sliding doors,

Werner Stadelmann, Chief Financial Officer
Finance and Controlling

about 180 employees left Kaba
Door Systems; at the same time,

folding wing gates, turnstiles and
rotating exclusion facilities, noise or

cotes (formerly Henderson-Bost-

however, many better-qualified em-

fire protection doors, architecturally

wick) and Berkhamstead (Kaba

ployees were also taken on for

ambitious or simple steel doors,

Camor) were closed down. The

newly defined posts.

passage-ways

own

suitable

for

the

manufacture

of

industrial

handicapped, automated access

doors ceased. These are now pro-

Growth and a major order

control or ticketing systems, indus-

cured as components in the inter-

in the Far East

trial doors and gates, roller grilles

national market, supplied directly to

A few months after the take-overs

and sectional gates and, not least,

the end customer and installed

in Great Britain, the Kaba marketing

static or movable partitions. The

there by the decentral business

organization in Singapore succeed-

service and repair organization sup-

units.

ed in winning an order for security

ports the selling of traditional Kaba

doors worth CHF 5 million for the

door systems and all other Kaba

Adtek's marketing activities in the

Hong Kong mass rapid transit sys-

products.

Netherlands and France were hived

tem. This collaboration has not only

off and integrated into the Kaba

proved to be the obvious fit be-

Kaba Door Systems is now divided

marketing companies there. In Italy,

tween Kaba's “Total Access” busi-

up into 9 regional business units. Its

a new Kaba company will take over

ness and that of the companies ac-

marketing, installation and after-

the activities of the former Adtek

quired in Great Britain, but also the

sales service skills were decentral-

production plant.

effectiveness of the world-wide Ka-

ized on the basis of the mainte-

ba marketing organization. In De-

nance organization that had been

In the first year of integration, the

cember 1999, the regional manage-

taken over. The locations Somer-

acquisitions

ment in Singapore then founded a

in

Great

Britain
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new Kaba company in Hong Kong

ed to take account of currency fluc-

27.8% from CHF 41.3 million to

and supported Kaba in Australia, in

tuations, of 22%. The determined

CHF 52.8 million. The greatest rise

the year under review, in building

building-up of a network of retailers

was achieved – as in the previous

up a new joint venture with a 51%

made the company into the third

year – by the access and time man-

Kaba participation. Under the name

largest profit earner in the locks and

agement sector. Here the reader

Kaba Boyd, this new company

locking systems sector in the year

and terminal business of Kaba Ben-

serves the customers in Australia

under review.

zing in particular developed outstandingly. In all markets, we profit-

and Australasia with high-quality
mechanical and electronic closing

We were able to announce in a me-

ed in the first six months of the fi-

systems, a complete range of doors

dia information on 8th January

nancial year from the increased in-

as well as electronic hotel closing

2000 that the Mass Transit Railway

vestments by many customers in

systems. Kaba now directly culti-

Corporation,

had

the electronics sector in view of the

vates the already existing base for

awarded Kaba a major order worth

forthcoming turn of the millennium.

Kaba closing systems, which had

CHF 120 million for the installation

But then, from December to March

previously been built up by a licens-

of sliding platform screen doors in

there followed a real slump in in-

ee. The Australian partner, Boyd

existing

vestments, which only began to re-

Hong

Kong,

underground

stations.

These automatic doors separate

cover

the platform from the dangers of

months of the business year. But,

the track area and must meet the

on balance, the other companies in

highest technical standards. From

the sector also made progress.

again

in

the

remaining

the financial year 2001/2002 on, it
will be possible to invoice some

Over 20% increase in profit per

CHF 30 million annually for this or-

year per annum

der. Kaba has thus succeeded in

In the medium term, we are assum-

making the breakthrough into a

ing that a part of the growth in prof-

new, technologically and logistical-

it we are aiming for of at least 20%

ly very demanding market segment.

on average (per share, per annum)

In order to improve performance as

will result to about one third from

well as to increase the safety and

internal growth in turnover, on the

Lock Company, for its part already

comfort

under-

basis of an improvement in the

holds a powerful and interesting

ground railways world-wide will be

EBIT margin, as well as from suit-

customer portfolio and a good mar-

introducing such platform barriers.

able acquisitions. In the year under

In urban rapid transit systems, platform screen
doors are being always more widely used.

of

passengers,

ket position.
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review, the target was earned main-

EBIT increase of 27.8%

ly from our own efforts, i.e. through

Our long-standing Japanese com-

As mentioned at the beginning, the

an improvement in the EBIT margin

pany,

Yokohama,

earnings before interest and taxes

and by a profitable growth in sales.

achieved a growth in sales, adjust-

(EBIT) rose by CHF 11.5 million or

Nihon

Kaba,

The negative balance of the finan-

22.4% in the previous year to

The sound balance-sheet ratios,

cial expenditure and earnings in-

27.5% in the year under review.

the profitability of the Group and
the high free cash flow enable Ka-

creased compared with the previous year from CHF – 4.5 million to

Ready for new acquisitions

ba, to swiftly seize acquisition op-

CHF – 5.0 million. The financial ex-

In the Group funds flow account,

portunities in the future.

penditure for the take-overs, espe-

the funds originating from the ren-

cially in Great Britain, was contrast-

dering of services grew to CHF 46.9

Solid components business and

ed by a high free cash flow from

million (previous year: CHF 27.3

strong high-tech solutions

current business. The tax expendi-

million). In the previous year's busi-

“Total Access” is more and more a

ture rose in view of the yield before

ness report, we stated that the

powerful combination of the solid

taxes from 24.7% in the previous

funds originating from the rendering

and highly profitable business in

year to 27.8%.

of services, adjusted to take ac-

security components in the areas of

count of extraordinary influences,

locking and door systems and rap-

The annual profit thus grew by CHF

were CHF 34.7 million. Also in rela-

idly growing high-tech solutions in

6.8 million or 24.5% from CHF 27.7

tionship to this corrected figure for

the fields of identification, time, ac-

million in the previous year to CHF

the previous year, the flow of funds

cess and EDC management as well

34.5 million. The same growth rate

increased by more than just the im-

also applies for the profit reported

provement in earnings for the year

per share. We have thus once again

under review.

achieved our objective of increasing the profit per share per annum

The net indebtedness sank with

by over 20%. In the four fiscal years

CHF 81.8 million not only in com-

since the introduction of our shares

parison with the previous year (CHF

on the Swiss Stock Exchange, de-

90 million), but also compared with

spite an increase in capital in 1997,

the midyear report as of 31.12.99

we have succeeded in increasing

(CHF 104.9 million after the integra-

the profit per share by 125% from

tion for the first time of the British

CHF 27.32 in 1995/96 to CHF 61.47

door system companies).

Electronic components make up for an ever
growing part of the sales.

The equity capital share of the bal-

as electronic ticketing. With the

ance-sheet total shows a decline

high-tech identification chip (Legic)

As a result, the equity capital prof-

with 31.4% compared with the pre-

that can as easily be integrated into

itability of the previous year of

vious year (35.6%) resulting from

ISO cards, watches, key rings or

23.5% rose to 30.0% in the last fi-

the integration of the various take-

keys, we are able to integrate all

nancial year. The total capital prof-

overs, but compared with the

applications in a economically used

itability (EBIT in percent of the net

midyear report (30%) already an im-

building on one single identification

operating assets) improved from

provement again.

medium. These applications can be

in the year under review, i.e. by an
average of 22.5% annually.
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mechanical locking systems, elec-

nologically leading position for

ume throughout the Group, but also

tronic access control systems, time

itself: Even two years after its pre-

quickly safeguard the same com-

and EDC management, vending

miere at CeBIT, the network-capa-

mercially.

machines and cash-less cafeteria

ble Bedanet Terminal from Kaba

management systems or any other

Benzing is still without competition

High shareholder orientation

conceivable application. As “Kaba

world-wide. The fact that company

Since going public, the corporate

Common

(Kaba

data gathering via Internet, Intranet

management of the Kaba Group

com-ID), Kaba offers in the SEAM-

or Extranet will become even more

has invested a great deal of time in

co-operation with Arthur Andersen

important in future is shown by the

cultivating current and future stock-

and Bull comprehensive concepts

market successes of the new

holders. The publication of the then

covering all security aspects up to

Bedanet Terminals.

unique Investor Handbook in au-

Identification”

the IT security.
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tumn 1996 additionally increased
In addition to expenditure purely on

transparency. In the year under re-

High investments in the future

R&D, Kaba – as already shown

view, the Group management has

Nowadays,

highest-ranking

above – invested substantially in

further improved the personal culti-

importance is attached to electron-

building up new markets in the past

vation of investors at the most im-

ics. Here only a clearly focussed,

financial year. The broad interna-

internationally broadly based com-

tional support makes a rapid and

pany will succeed in helping to

economically successful introduc-

shape the technology trend right at

tion of new products on the market

the forefront and in successfully

possible. At the same time, Kaba

introducing innovative products in

utilizes the geographic expansion

the market. Kaba can already look

regularly pushed ahead by one sin-

back over a long-standing tradition

gle sector subsequently also for the

as innovator. With some five per

increased sales of products and

cent of turnover, Kaba invests con-

services of other sectors. The suc-

siderable funds annually in R&D. By

cessful build-up of the door busi-

comparison with the available fig-

ness in Great Britain thus also pro-

ures for our competitors; we are

vides new sales openings for clos-

clearly above average with this. If

ing systems, and conversely Kaba's

portant European stock exchanges.

one takes into account that a grow-

good market references in the clos-

The intensified contacts with in-

ing share of sales is achieved with

ing systems sector facilitated the

vestors in the Anglo-Saxon area

innovative products, which are less

market entry for door systems in

have brought Kaba noteworthy new

than three years old, the impor-

the Far East. Thus the considerable

shareholders from the United King-

tance of clearly focussed devel-

costs involved in building up mar-

dom, as well as from the USA and

opment work becomes apparent.

kets cannot only be justified by

Canada. As a result, the price of

Kaba can thus today claim a tech-

broadly supported growths in vol-

Kaba stock has also improved. As

the

The identification technology Legic is a key
component at Kaba com-ID solutions

on 30th June 2000, our shares were

profit increase in the financial year

being traded at CHF 2100, 156%

2000/2001.

above the previous year's closing
price on 30th June 1999 of CHF

We continue to stand by our vision

821. Kaba is being increasingly per-

of achieving an average growth in

ceived as technology stock.

profit of 20% per share per annum
by a combination of internal and

Our commitment is highly es-

external growth. For this we contin-

teemed in the financial world: The

ue to need the planned growth in

Swiss community of interests, Pro

sales, suitable acquisitions as well

Swiss Invest, put Kaba in third

as the above-mentioned continu-

place with respect to investor rela-

ous increase of the EBIT margin up

tions in 2000 (in previous years, one

to 12%.

second and one third place). By
comparison with the other companies singled out, Kaba stands out
particularly because of its high constancy and continuity. This past is
also a challenge to us for the future.

Outlook
In the financial year 2000/2001, Kaba will again increase its operating
revenues parallel to the internal
growth. If one of the potential acquisition projects substantiates, the
announced sales volume target of
CHF 650 million will be met for the
financial year 2001/2002.
The successful trend of the components business, the development of
the new systems integration market, the growth perspectives in EDC
in co-operation with SAP as well as
the positive effects stemming from
the integration of the acquired
companies will lead to a further
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Door Systems
The Door Systems Division posted a sizable advance in growth which
also reflects the acquisitions in Great Britain. Sales rose by 75.4% to
CHF 229.9 million. Internal growth closed at 16.9%, also clearly higher than the industry average. The swift integration of the acquired
companies substantially strengthened Kaba’s position in the EU
area. Kaba Gilgen succeeded in making a respectable debut in the
Asian market with a major contract for retrofitting platform screen
doors in the Hong Kong subway system. The contract spans a period of six years and is worth CHF 120 million. This project will have a
positive impact on the Division’s further growth as well.

The year under review was a turbu-

service organization, Kaba Door

domain of access control for stadia

lent one for the Door Systems Divi-

Systems now expects sustainable

and major events. Except for the

sion. With an acquisition-driven

growth in its second year as a

stadium in Brussels, all venues of

75% gain in sales and a 135%

member of the Kaba Group.

the 2000 European Football Championships in Belgium and the

surge in new orders buoyed by major contracts, the Division is well

At the beginning of the financial

Netherlands were equipped with

poised to meet the challenges of

year, the distribution and marketing

Kaba Gallenschütz tripod barriers

the future. In the year now ended,

activities of Kaba Gilgen and Kaba

and access control systems. In

the Group’s international position

Gallenschütz

were

view of the imminent retrofits and

as regards the distribution of drive

combined into the newly estab-

new stadia to be built allover Eu-

and

Kaba

lished Kaba Türsysteme GmbH in

rope, Kaba has clearly strength-

control

elements

–

in

Germany

Gilgen’s so-called kit systems – and

Bühl. This company is now serving

ened its focus on this segment. The

the Kaba Gallenschütz line of secu-

its market as a full-range provider

competitiveness of Kaba products

rity

significantly

of security and automatic doors

in the international market for auto-

strengthened. With the systematic

with a comprehensive sales and

mated components is underscored

integration of Adtek Ltd., the British

service

Business

by a contract for the delivery of

door and gate company, and of the

trended briskly in the Benelux

2000 turnstiles for regional buses in

Henderson-Bostwick Group with its

countries while the market re-

Chile. Visitors to the World Exposi-

international subsidiaries, both ac-

mained sluggish in France. Two

tion Expo 2000 in Hannover pass

quired last year, Kaba not only con-

specific market segments are wor-

through Kaba access control sys-

solidated its position in Great

thy of particular mention: Kaba is

tems as will people who are drawn

Britain but also expanded its pres-

one of the key market players in the

to the “new” Expo.02 in Switzer-

Sönke Bandixen, COO
Door Systems Division

land.

doors

were

ence in Italy, France, and the
Netherlands. The acquisitions in

organization.

The Door Systems Division entered

Great Britain resulted in the incor-

the Asian market with a flourish af-

poration of the new company, Kaba

ter finalizing the major contract for

Door Systems Ltd. The company is

retrofitting the Hong Kong subway

already the market leader in the au-

system with platform screen doors

tomatic, industrial, and security

and delivering a total of 2500 indus-

doors segment. As a full-range

trial doors in the non-pedestrian

provider built around a powerful

“back door” segment.
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Doors from a systems viewpoint

In its current form, the Door Systems Division has its roots in Kaba’s

ty, organization, and convenience.

“Total Access” strategy: the company’s objective is to cover all

The key to the development of an

“doorkeeping” functions within the scope of a contiguous system.

excellent market position in Europe

This significantly broadened the spectrum from the keyhole to the

was the Group’s extensive product

door as a self-contained security system which has open-architec-

line which emphasizes an opti-

ture interfaces to higher-echelon building management functions.

mized and cost-effective combination of all three factors for each ap-

The Kaba Group’s “Total Access”

sion illustrates an underlying trend

plication. The acquisition of the

strategy embraces all doorkeeping

of the past years: departing from

door and gate activities of Adtek

security and organization functions.

security aspects, the activities of

and Henderson-Bostwick in Great

With its background in banking fa-

the Kaba Group in the door seg-

Britain recently brought about a

cilities, Kaba first addressed the

ment gradually placed ever-greater

significant expansion of this posi-

domain of security doors. But this

emphasis on particularly conveni-

tion not only as regards new prod-

ent solutions.

ucts (industrial doors and gates)

Plant entrances with bicycle passage gates
address the reborn popularity of bikes.

but also in terms of geographical
user-friendly

coverage beyond German-speak-

cylindrical doors, tripod barriers,

ing Europe (Great Britain, Scandi-

and security doors, Kaba Gallen-

navia,

schütz established a strong reputa-

Spain).

With

elegant

and

Benelux,

France,

Italy,

tion in the marketplace. The convenience aspect is also top of mind

Intense development work

in the automatic doors manufac-

The triad composed of security, or-

tured by Kaba Gilgen. The Door

ganization, and convenience is the

Systems Division, like the Kaba

signpost to all further develop-

Group as a whole, always operates

ments in the Door Systems Divi-

in the polarity field between securi-

sion. Thus, as the market leader for
security doors, Kaba Gallenschütz

scope of activities gradually expanded and now includes not only

Contemporary access control relies on
open-architecture interfaces to higher-echelon systems

is currently broadening is product
range with the addition of full-

high-security systems but also ar-

height turnstiles and bicycle pas-

chitecturally appealing pedestrian

sage gates. Particularly in product

flow control systems.

line expansions for sports stadiums
and venues of other major events,
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Today, the product line ranges from

security and convenience are the

modern door drives to automatic

overriding aspects. Kaba was able

doors integrated in convenience

to derive plenty of inspiration from

and security systems. This expan-

the

recent

European

Football

Championships in Holland and Bel-

may have noticed that there are

gium; developments are also being

considerably fewer automatic doors

pursued in view of the forthcoming

in the USA, for example, than in Eu-

World Championships in Germany

rope, or that many Asians are of-

and in the context of new stadia

fended by tripod barriers that touch

that are being built in Switzerland.
When the issue is to gain access to

Kaba Gilgen automatic doors perform flawlessly in extreme environments as well.

the user, even if only slightly. Idiosyncrasies such as these must be
taken into account when develop-

new market segments, security, organization, and convenience are

the Division is also open to joint

ing new markets. The Door Sys-

strong assets, too. For instance,

ventures with partners as it seeks

tems Division is thus systematically

operators of subway systems can

to round out its product line for

accessing new niche markets such

significantly boost the capacity and

niche markets. After all, time to

as urban transit. In Hong Kong, Ka-

appeal of their facilities by retro-

market – the time it takes to bring a

ba is currently establishing a new

fitting open stations with platform

new product to the marketplace – is

screen doors. The stringent require-

often the most critical factor in

ments imposed on the technical re-

planning. And this applies to Kaba’s

liability of a system are currently

business as well.

Kaba has the right products for controlled
access to sports stadiums and mass-audience events.

being explored at Kaba Gilgen
where the platform screen doors for

Cultural disparities in security

the subway in Hong Kong are sub-

An expansion into non-European

jected to time- and cost-intensive

door markets must be carefully pre-

endurance tests in 100% duty cy-

meditated, because the individual

cles months ahead of scheduled

markets have different definitions of

delivery.

modern and convenient security.
People who travel abroad often

However, the prospect of gaining
access to future-oriented market
segments clearly justifies the effort
and the investment involved.

Long-term tests at Kaba Gilgen: only absolutely safe products assure user convenience and security.

company which – in the wake of the
retrofit contract for the Hong Kong
subway – will foray into the Chinese

In its principal European markets,

market with a selected range of Ka-

the Door Systems Division strives

ba products. Based on prestigious

to be a full-range provider. But not

contracts won in the past, market

every product has the best-selling

growth in these regions focuses on

potential of platform screen doors.

the high-end segment, too.

Because of the time and cost involved in proprietery developments,
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Mechanical and Electromechanical Locks

In financial 1999/2000, the Mechanical and Electromechanical Locks
Division posted a 6.5% gain in sales to CHF 155.1 million. In Europe,
mechatronic locking systems have proved to be genuine growth
engines because they address the market’s needs for high security and
extensive organizational flexibility. During the year under review, the
Division was able to further expand its market positions in North America and Asia.

New orders received by the Mechan-

Malaysia, where new orders declined

as door equipment and door systems

ical and Electromechanical Locks Di-

significantly. The aftereffects of the

provided a foundation for Kaba Lim-

vision were above average, closing at

Asian crisis will continue to hamper

ited Hong Kong: the new company

12%. Internal growth accounted for

market developments here.

has been operational since February
2000.

7%. The Division’s sales picked up
perceptibly by 6.5% in the report

In Japan, where the economic situa-

year. All market regions contributed

tion is everything but promising, a

In the same period, activities in Aus-

to this growth, with the exception of

genuine breakthrough was achieved

tralia were reorganized with the es-

Singapore and Malaysia, which were

after many years of groundwork.

tablishment of Kaba Boyd. The joint

still affected by the Asian crisis.

Greater security consciousness, the

venture with the Boyd Lock Compa-

high acceptance of the convenient

ny, a lock and hardware manufactur-

Developments that emerged last year

Kaba reversible key system, and not

er in New South Wales, became ac-

have begun to accelerate: the trend

least the persistent market servicing

tive on April 1, 2000; it serves the

towards enhanced security and the

work triggered a veritable boom. This

Australian market with a comprehen-

concurrent need for greater organiza-

trend in Japan is likely to be a sus-

sive line of Kaba cylinders, locks, and

tional flexibility boosted the demand

tainable growth driver for Kaba in the

hardware.

for mechatronic components. This

future.
The trend in the USA was encourag-

resulted in above-average growth,
particularly in Europe.
In Switzerland, growth was based al-

Working out of Singapore, Kaba es-

ing. Here, Kaba targeted mainly niche

tablished a base in Hong Kong. Initial

segments,

orders for masterkey systems as well

strategic alliances, and concluded

there was no downtrend in the vol-

existing

new contracts with OEM partners for

most exclusively on electronic and
mechatronic components, although

consolidated

Heribert Allemann, COO
Mechanical and Electromechanical Locks
Division

cylinder solutions.

ume of purely mechanical locking

The trend towards enhanced security

systems. Elsewhere in Europe, busi-

and greater organizational flexibility

ness trended reassuringly as well,

will continue to stimulate business

and there was a noticeable shift to-

with electronic and mechatronic

wards electronic products. Business

components. Kaba is in an excellent

in Singapore was disappointing,

position to tangibly benefit from this

however, and even more so in

development.
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From the lock to the masterkey system

During the past years, globalization had a significant impact on the

the highest degree of security at-

market for security and masterkey systems. A wave of consolidation

tainable with mechanical means.

is taking place among distributors and manufacturers, and it has not

They are particularly suitable for se-

yet ended. The integration of electronics, computing power, and

curing doors and access passages

communications in products and solutions is expediting this

with an average security profile or

process. Kaba is well positioned with its forward-looking product

for the implementation of masterkey

innovations.

systems which for a certain period
of time do not require any major or-

As late as the 1980s, business with

sponse to market demand: purely

ganizational reconfiguration. How-

masterkey systems in Europe was

mechanical systems; mechatronic

ever, the integration of electronically

local, often not even of national

standalone solutions; mechatronic

controlled additional functionalities

scope. Most providers in this mar-

solutions with additional organiza-

is recommendable when a mas-

ket were privately owned compa-

tional functions; and networked

terkey system must address com-

nies that distributed their products

electronic solutions.

plex requirements or where access
authorizations are subject to contin-

almost exclusively through local
hardware stores. In the 1990s, with

The advent of electronics

the onset of globalization, this situa-

While electronic components al-

tion changed perceptibly; Kaba

ready account for 15% of the Divi-

Schliesssysteme and its interna-

sion’s sales, this dynamic growth

tional subsidiaries positioned them-

market should expand quickly in the

selves favorably in this environment.

coming years. For this reason, Kaba

Three

developments

is encouraging specialized retailers,

have characterized the paradigm

traditionally the most important

change in the market for locking

sales channel, to enter the world of

systems:

electronics with its mechatronic

1. Instead of individual locks and

standalone products. Conversely,

simple masterkey systems, demand

the installation of complex net-

has shifted to complex systems

worked solutions in which individual

with additional organization-related

cylinders are connected to a cen-

functions.

tralized access control system, is

2. The products are evolving from

usually handled by systems integra-

New organizational solutions

mechanical devices to mechani-

tors.

An intrinsically inflexible mechanical

interwoven

Electronic components are integrated both in
the well-known Kaba reversible key and in
Gege products.

system can be flexibilized with an

cal/electronic solutions.
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ual change.

3. On both the demand and supply

Always the right solution

electronic identification chip in the

sides, the market internationalized.

With their high-precision milled pat-

key and an appropriate reader in the

In locking technologies, Kaba today

terns, Kaba’s well-known, patented

locking cylinder, as is the case in

offers four product categories in re-

mechanical locking systems offer

Kaba elostar or Kaba elolegic sys-

tems. The circle of persons with ac-

Given the enormous number of in-

tems that are standardized on a

cess authorization can be redefined

stalled mechanical cylinders, par-

pan-European or even global scale.

at any time in response to changing

ticularly in the markets where Kaba

Kaba has a presence in more than

needs. This is handled at the soft-

has a broad presence, this trans-

50 countries today and can fully ad-

ware level by reprogramming, with-

lates into a significant retrofit poten-

dress this need.

out necessitating the replacement

tial for electronic components. The

or exchange of any keys or cylin-

market

meanwhile

The development of new geograph-

ders. In more sophisticated solu-

achieved by the Mechanical and

ical markets is likely to be based on

tions, the electronic circuitry not on-

Electromechanical Locks Division

acquisitions, strategic alliances, and

ly provides extra security functions

allows it to invest the necessary

a focus on specific niche segments,

but also covers further organiza-

means in the centralized develop-

as is the case in the USA. Three

tional tasks: thus, Kaba elolegic

ment of new products.

years ago, Kaba gained additional

position

market share with the acquisition of

time keeps a record of the 1000
most recent movements per door.

Today, Kaba is recognized as one of

This makes it possible to determine

the leading providers of electronic

which key was used to gain access

locking systems throughout Europe.

at any door. In networked solutions,

Market participants with only a local

great importance is attached to the

presence may be able to keep pace

organizational aspects.

with developments, but the lack of

The micromotor-actuated security bolt ingeniously fits into the elegantly designed Kaba
elolegic locking cylinder.

market breadth is an obstacle to the
Efficiency, convenience, flexibility

successful introduction of innova-

In commercial and industrial appli-

tions. This circumstance is com-

cations, the emphasis is on the

pounded by the internationalization

smooth integration of the locking

of customer communities: more and

systems in the site’s IT environment

more large international companies

to achieve efficiency gains and cost

demand security and locking sys-

savings. In the more and more tightly networked world of business, the

Kaba master key systems are especially flexible, secure and comfortable.

Gege. Market share is particularly

market’s focus is on open inter-

important when the issue is to

faces: electronic components must

quickly and broadly launch new de-

be able to interact with higher-eche-

velopments while maintaining a

lon systems. In applications former-

competitive lead.

ly handled with purely mechanical
devices, the principal argument in
favor of the addition of electronic
components is the gain in convenience and flexibility.
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Access and Time Management Systems

The Access and Time Management Systems Division reports again
higher growth for 1999/2000: sales increased by 20.6% to CHF 141
million. At 18%, growth was even more pronounced in the expanded
scope of consolidation, under consideration of the acquisition of
Kaba Benzing Wien (formerly Carl Czeiger). Many customers
responded to the Y2K problem by replacing older access control,
time management or data collection systems with new solutions.
This contributed just as much to the Division’s above-average result
as the launch of new products.

The Access and Time Management

new RRM (remote reader module)

countries. Kaba Benzing USA, a re-

Systems Division can look back on

product line for access control

cently founded subsidiary, now

a very successful year. The 21%

readers with remote antennas con-

makes it possible to expand the

advance in sales resulted in an

tributed substantially to growth at

strategic partnership with SAP to

overproportional increase of con-

Kaba Baxess.

North America.

In general, all distribution compa-

Kaba Benzing achieved a break-

The systems integration companies

nies benefited from the IT renewal

through with the world’s first Be-

at the front aligned their organiza-

wave in anticipation of the transition

danet data entry terminal pro-

tional structures with country-spe-

to the new millennium.

grammed with the Java language. It

cific conditions, invested in their

has been integrated in a number of

own ERP and IT systems, and thus

Kaba Benzing, specialized in time

large-scale early-adopter projects.

systematically developed their re-

management and data collection,

Java makes the product network-

spective markets. In one project ac-

was particularly successful and

able via the Internet, or in intranets

cepted under general contractor

generated the best result in its his-

or extranets. The project partner-

terms, however, construction-relat-

tory. However, growth achieved

ship with SAP is evolving very well:

ed delays slowed progress and cul-

with Legic, the radio frequency

the five-hundredth joint installation

minated in special charges that bur-

identification (RFID) system devel-

was commissioned in the course of

dened the result.

oped by Kaba, was also distinctly

the financial year. Enterprise data

higher than the already dynamic

collection (EDC) systems are al-

In Germany, the individual business

market average. More and more

ready being sold in ten European

activities have meanwhile reached a

solidated income from operations.

clearly, Legic is becoming the standard, particularly in the fields of en-

Ulrich Wydler, COO
Acces and Time Control Division

critical mass. For this reason, the
distribution companies can now

terprise data collection (EDC), time

handle service operations – former-

management, and access control.

ly concentrated in a single organization – themselves. This streamlines

Kaba Baxess, the manufacturer of

the distribution process and im-

access control and time manage-

proves after-sales support at the

ment software, also reported out-

customer level.

standing results. New licensees in
Finland and Greece as well as the
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At the pulse of information technology

The Access and Time Management Systems Division is mainly

With its proprietary Legic chip, Kaba

involved in electronic personnel management and operational data

defined a new benchmark in the field

collection applications. The hectic pace of progress in information

of transponder technology in the

technologies (IT) and enterprise resource planning (ERP) dictates the

early 1990s. Today, Legic is a central

product innovation cycle. Kaba has repeatedly substantiated its

component of many applications in-

leadership position with trailblazing innovations.

volving access control and enterprise data collection. Legic has es-

In the entrepreneurial environment,

not only makes it possible to inte-

tablished itself in numerous do-

people and data have many things

grate hitherto separate systems but

mains, for example in personnel

in common – both often pass

also paves the way to new ap-

badges with access profiles, in tick-

through defined entrances and exits

proaches. For instance, databases

eting solutions, and/or in charge

where authorization checks are per-

for several applications can be

cards. Information stored in Legic

formed. This is where the Access

maintained at one location, allowing

media is acquired by peripheral data

and Time Management Systems Di-

entire business processes to be

vision unfolds its activities. Particu-

holistically planned and controlled.

larly in personnel management and

This reduces the administrative ef-

operational data collection applica-

fort and enhances operating con-

tions, the limits of feasibility and of

venience. Today, more and more

future functionalities are being bro-

companies are wrapping time man-

ken again and again.

agement, data collection and access

Latest-generation electronics solves many
organizational problems, starting with access to a building.

control, alarm systems and even
Technical developments are making

cashless cafeteria or vending ma-

it possible to bundle closely related

chine accounting into a single sys-

yet thus far segregated domains in a

tem.

single holistic system. For example,
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by combining innovative information

As a systems integrator, Kaba de-

technologies and advanced elec-

signs such integrated solutions,

tronics, the same system that han-

drawing from the entire product and

terminals, then processed and for-

dles physical access control can al-

service spectrum of its Group com-

warded to ERP systems such as

so prevent unauthorized access to

panies. Meanwhile, the availability of

those provided by SAP, Peoplesoft,

data. A market characterized by ex-

interfaces between such applica-

Baan, and other software develop-

tremely dynamic growth is opening

tions and higher-order enterprise re-

ers.

up for Kaba in this area.

source planning (ERP) solutions has
become more important as well.

Middleware opens doors

Comprehensive ERP systems

This is a further growth engine for

Apart from identification media and

Unprecedented growth in memory

the Access and Time Management

peripheral equipment, companies

capacities and transmission speeds

Systems Division.

are placing ever-greater importance

on efficiency in data processing as

well as its partnership with Arthur

well as the reliable transfer of data to

Andersen and Bull also hinge on

integrated business solutions such

multifunctional storage media. The

as SAP/ERP R/3. This task is han-

idea is that the components which

dled by dedicated software pack-

grow together at the systems level

ages that the industry refers to as

should also be operable with a sin-

middleware. Frequently, standardized ERP systems cannot completely cover the customer’s require-

Technically mature electronic data collection
solutions are gaining significance in the industrial domain.

gle, real-world identification medium. The new partnership gives customers the unique opportunity to se-

ments. In such cases, Kaba offers

driving forward its Kaba Legic iden-

cure physical access management

compatible expansion packages, for

tification technology as well as its

(Kaba) and logical data access se-

instance in the field of access con-

Kaba exos systems platform. Thus,

curity (Bull) with a single ID device

trol. The ERP middleware Kaba B-

with its high-performance basic

(Com-ID). A Legic hybrid card, for

Comm is a standard module that

technologies, Kaba is uniquely posi-

example, can integrate several data

can be integrated in network-based

tioned to implement applications of

transfer technologies such as bar

systems. In the domain of enterprise

growing complexity and to address

codes, magnetic stripes, and induc-

data collection, the significance of

individual user needs as regards se-

tive or contact chips.

middleware as a gateway for ac-

curity, convenience, and investment

commodating specific user needs is

protection.

Geographically, the Access and
Time Management Systems Division

growing as well.
Empowering partnerships

is focused mainly on Europe. In the

The future growth of the Access and

Within the framework of SEAM (Se-

ERP market, however, Kaba has

Time Management Systems Division

cure Enterprise Access Manage-

many new opportunities to establish

will be buoyed by its alignment with

ment), Kaba’s Com-ID concept as

a foothold overseas, in partnerships
with IT and ERP consultants as well

the trends outlined above, and also
by an expansion of its technological
leadership and market position. As

Architects appreciate the Remote Reader
Modules that offer ergonomically and architectonically appealing solutions.

as software firms. Although manufacturing companies in North Ameri-

pacemakers in the growth market

ca impose the most exacting de-

for enterprise data collection, Kaba

mands on ERP software, business

Baxess and Kaba Benzing have re-

solutions that integrate time man-

peatedly brought innovations to the

agement and data collection models

market. The future-oriented prod-

are not as prevalent as in Europe. It

ucts are based on the latest Inter-

is therefore legitimate to expect that

net- and intranet-compatible com-

the European trend towards applica-

munications technologies, including

tion integration will gradually em-

TCP/IP and new-generation soft-

brace the North American market

ware. At the same time, Kaba is also

and further regions.
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Consolidated Group Balance Sheet
Assets

(in CHF million)

Note

30. 6.2000

%

30. 6.1999

%

Intangible assets

(2.2)

4.7

1.3

5.0

1.5

Land and buildings

67.6

18.5

75.6

22.8

Machinery and equipment

23.9

6.5

21.0

6.3

Furniture and fixtures

27.9

7.6

23.3

7.0

0.9

0.2

0.8

0.3

120.3

32.8

120.7

36.4

Advance financing participations

0.0

0.0

18.6

5.6

Long-term loans and securities

5.0

1.4

4.8

1.5

5.0

1.4

23.4

7.1

130.0

35.5

149.1

45.0

(2.4)

93.1

25.5

72.7

21.9

Trade accounts receivables

(2.5)

109.3

29.9

85.6

25.8

Other receivables

(2.6)

12.2

3.3

15.5

4.7

3.1

0.8

2.0

0.6

124.6

34.0

103.1

31.1

2.5

0.7

0.7

0.2

15.9

4.3

6.0

1.8

236.1

64.5

182.5

55.0

366.1

100.0

331.6

100.0

Fixed assets:

Payments on account
and construction in progress
Total

(2.2)

Financial assets:

Total

(2.2, 2.3)

Total long-term assets
Inventory
Receivables:

Accruals
Total
Marketable securities

(2.7)

Cash and cash equivalents
Total current assets
Total assets

(2.1, 5.1)

Assets
30. 6.2000

Total Fixed Assets

Working Capital

Assets
30. 6.1999

Total Fixed Assets

Working Capital

1% intangible assets 5 million

1% intangible assets 4.7 million
26% inventories 93.1 million

22% inventories 72.7 million

33% fixed assets 120.3 million

36% fixed assets 120.7 million

31% receivables 103.1 million
1% financial assets 5 million

34% receivables 124.6 million
1% marketable securities 2.5 million

7% financial assets 23.4 million
1% marketable securities 0.7 million

4% cash and cash equivalents 15.9 million
2% cash and cash equivalents 6.0 million
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Shareholders’ equity and liabilities

(in CHF million)

Note

30. 6.2000

%

30. 6.1999

%

Capital stock

22.5

6.1

22.5

6.8

Additional paid-in capital

54.1

14.8

54.1

16.3

37.9

10.4

41.2

12.5

0.4

0.1

0.1

0.0

114.9

31.4

117.9

35.6

related obligations

12.2

3.3

12.0

3.6

Provisions for taxes

30.4

8.3

25.7

7.7

Other provisions

43.9

12.0

33.8

10.2

86.5

23.6

71.5

21.5

35.6

9.7

40.1

12.1

5.7

1.6

1.9

0.6

41.3

11.3

42.0

12.7

Trade accounts payable

38.9

10.6

22.5

6.8

Due to banks

58.9

16.1

54.7

16.5

Other short-term liabilities

18.4

5.0

16.4

4.9

7.2

2.0

6.6

2.0

Shareholders' equity:

Retained earnings

(2.9)

Minority interests
Total

(2.8)

Provisions:
Provisions for pensions and

Total

(2.10)

Long-term liabilities:
Bank loans
Other long-term liabilities
Total

(2.11)

Short-term liabilities:

Accruals
Total

(2.12)

123.4

33.7

100.2

30.2

Total shareholders’ equity and liabilities

(5.1, 5.2)

366.1

100.0

331.6

100.0

Equity

Shareholders’ equity and liabilities
30. 6.2000
Liabilities

31% shareholders’ equity
114.9 million

24% provisions 86.5 million

11% long-term
liabilities
41.3 million

34% short-term
liabilities
123.4 million

Equity

Shareholders’ equity and liabilities
30. 6.2000
Liabilities

36% shareholders’ equity
117.9 million

21% provisions
71.5 million

13% long-term
liabilities
42.0 million

30% short-term
liabilities
100.2 million
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Consolidated Group Income Statement

(in CHF million)

Note

Sales (net)

(3.1)

1999/2000

%

1998/99

%

526.5

96.3

394.1

96.5

7.9

1.4

1.9

0.5

12.4

2.3

12.1

3.0

546.8

100.0

408.1

100.0

Changes in finished goods and
work in progress
Other operating revenues

(3.2)

Operating revenues

Material costs

(3.3)

– 174.4

– 31.9

– 114.7

– 28.1

Personnel costs

(3.4)

– 202.1

– 37.0

– 162.0

– 39.7

Depreciation

(3.5)

– 17.2

– 3.1

– 15.1

– 3.7

Other operating expenses

(3.6)

– 100.3

– 18.4

– 75.0

–18.4

52.8

9.6

41.3

10.1

Income from operations

Financial income

(3.7)

2.6

0.5

1.1

0.3

Financial expense

(3.8)

– 7.6

– 1.4

– 5.6

– 1.4

47.8

8.7

36.8

9.0

– 13.3

– 2.4

– 9.1

– 2.2

34.5

6.3

27.7

6.8

0.1

0.0

0.0

0.0

51.7

9.4

42.8

10.5

Income before tax

Taxes

(3.9)

Net income

Net income applicable to minority interests

Net income after taxes plus depreciation
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210.9

196.3

212.8

210.9

328.5

366.2

394.1

526.5

13.0

9.9

6.1

9.1

12.3

14.0

17.4

22.1

27.7

34.5

CHF million

225.6

Net income for the Year

CHF million

223.4

Sales (net)

90/91

91/92

92/93

93/94

94/95

95/96

96/97

97/98

98/99

99/00

90/91

91/92

92/93

93/94

94/95

95/96

96/97

97/98

98/99

99/00

Consolidated Statement of Cash flows

(in CHF million)

Note

1999/2000

1998/99

Net income

34.5

27.7

Depreciation

17.2

15.1

Income statement positions not affecting cash

– 0.8

– 1.6

Increase in inventory

– 7.7

– 6.2

Decrease/increase in receivables

2.2

– 14.7

Increase in short-term liabilities

2.5

2.7

Decrease/increase in provisions

– 1.0

4.3

Net cash provided by operating activities

46.9

27.3

Purchase/advance financing of investments

– 11.3

– 25.4

Purchase of fixed assets

– 19.6

– 12.6

Purchase of financial assets

– 0.2

– 0.2

Purchase of intangible assets

– 1.6

– 4.4

Proceeds from sale of fixed assets

8.7

4.6

Proceed from sale of financial assets

1.9

0.4

– 22.1

– 37.6

Increase in short-term financial liabilities

1.4

13.7

Decrease/Increase in long-term liabilities

– 6.6

– 17.9

Dividends paid

– 7.0

– 6.5

– 12.2

– 10.7

– 0.9

0.2

11.7

– 20.8

6.7

27.5

18.4

6.7

Net cash used in investing activities

Net cash provided by financing activities
Net effect of currency translation / -consolidation
Decrease/increase in cash and cash equivalents;
marketable securities

(4.)

Cash and cash equivalents; marketable securities
Beginning balance, year under review
Ending balance, year under review

Net income plus Depreciation
(after tax)

Investments
(excl. Investments in
Financial assets)

Mio. CHF

22.5

20.3

15.9

18.4

22.1

23.5

30.6

36.9

42.8

51.7

20.6

13.2

17.1

12.1

15.1

20.0

63.1

21.1

42.4

32.5

Mio. CHF

90/91

91/92

92/93

93/94

94/95

95/96

96/97

97/98

98/99

99/00

90/91

91/92

92/93

93/94

94/95

95/96

96/97

97/98

98/99

99/00
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Notes to the Consolidated Group Financial Statements

1. Principles of Consolidation

1.2 Scope of consolidation

In the year under review, the scope

The consolidated financial state-

of consolidation applicable to the

1.1 Introduction

ments

Kaba

statement of income was expanded

The consolidated financial state-

Holding AG (parent company) and

by the first-time consolidation of

ments are stated in accordance

those entities which the Group con-

activities taken over by the follow-

with the Swiss Company Law and

trols (subsidiaries). Control exists

ing companies:

the Swiss Accounting and Report-

when the Group owns, either di-

As per July 1, 1999

ing Recommendations (ARR). In

rectly or indirectly, the majority of

-

compliance with these recommen-

the voting rights of the company's

dations, they give a true and fair

share capital. Such subsidiaries are

view of the financial position, the

fully consolidated; no percentage of

-

results of operations and the cash

ownership consolidations occur.

-

flows of the Kaba Group.

The business operations of all sub-

(“Group”)

include

sidiaries are controlled by the

lands and Italy

-

Henderson-Bostwick Industrial
Hufcor Partitions Ltd, London
(GB)

-

Czeiger & Co. GmbH, Vienna
(AT)

companies) are accounted for under the equity method.

Vega Ltd, Warrington (GB)
Doors Ltd, Somercotes (GB)

Group. Investments in which a
20–50% interest is held (associated

Adtek Ltd, Telford (GB), with
branches in France, the Nether-

As per January 1, 2000
-

Boyd Lock Company Pty Ltd,
Wetherill Park (AU)

This increased consolidated sales
and assets in the opening balance
sheet by 84.9 CHF million.
A list of group and associated companies is shown on page 48.
Due to its impending sale and as is
consistent with the prior year, the
Ruchser + Aubry AG is excluded
from the scope of consolidation.
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1.3 Consolidation principles

For the purpose of consolidation,

assets are revalued at the acquisi-

Balance sheets denominated in for-

investments in subsidiaries are off-

tion date. The excess of the cost of

eign currencies are converted into

set against the Group’s share of

acquisition of a subsidiary over the

Swiss francs using year-end rates

subsidiaries’ equity as at July 1,

fair value of its attributable net as-

of exchange. Income and expenses

1992. Excesses of equity over in-

sets at the date of acquisition is

are translated at average rates of

vestments are credited based on

goodwill charged directly against

exchange for the year. Translation

their nature to retained earnings.

retained earnings.

differences are taken directly to re-

Acquisitions made after July 1,

tained earnings. Significant ex-

1992 are recorded under the fair

Minority interests in equity and net

change rates are as follows:

market value method, under which

income are separately disclosed in
the consolidated group balance

Currencies

Exchange rate at:

Average rate:

sheet and income statement, re-

30 . 6.2000 30. 6.1999

1999/2000 1998/99

spectively.

DEM

0,796

0,819

0,815

0,823

ATS

0,113

0,116

0,116

0,117

All intercompany transactions and

GBP

2,481

2,448

2,544

2,383

balances with companies included

SEK

0,185

0,184

0,187

0,179

in the consolidation are eliminated.

FRF

0,237

0,244

0,243

0,246

ESP

0,009

0,010

0,010

0,010

The closing date is identical for all

NLG

0,707

0,726

0,723

0,731

companies (June 30).

BEF

0,039

0,040

0,040

0,040

JPY

0,015

0,013

0,015

0,012

Under the equity method of ac-

SGD

0,955

0,912

0,935

0,858

counting

for

investments,

the

MYR

0,430

0,401

0,420

0,370

change in the Group's equity in-

USD

1,634

1,550

1,599

1,455

vestment is the change in the asso-

AUD

0,978

1,002

ciated companies' equity from the

HKD

0,209

0,204

beginning to the end of the year.
This change in equity investments
is disclosed in the financial statements.
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1.4 Valuation

Permanent reductions in intangible

contracts, for large projects. Inven-

The valuation of balance sheet po-

asset and fixed asset values are

tory is recorded at the lower of cost

sitions is consistent throughout the

recorded when the impairment oc-

or market value.

Group. Where local accounts differ,

curs.
Provisions are recorded for existing

adjustments are made before including the accounts in consolida-

Investments (other than associates

liabilities which are probable or for

tion.

accounted for under the equity

which an amount must be estimat-

method), as well as securities, are

ed. Included are provisions for ex-

Items within a company's balance

recorded at the lower of cost or

pected losses from open contracts.

sheet which are denominated in

market value.
Pension liabilities in Switzerland are

foreign currencies are translated at
year-end rates. Foreign exchange

Receivables, both long- and short-

covered by autonomous pension

transaction losses are reflected in

term, which are considered fully

funds to which contributions are

the income statement.

collectible, are recorded at face val-

paid in accordance with a defined

ue. Provisions for doubtful ac-

contribution plan. The contributions

The basis for valuing assets is his-

counts are recorded on a specific

are paid equally by the employer

torical cost (purchase price or pro-

identification

col-

and employee. In certain cases, the

duction cost). Significant guidelines

lectibility is not expected. In addi-

employer pays additional voluntary

for valuing individual balance sheet

tion, a general provision based up-

contributions to the pension funds.

positions follow.

on historical experience is recorded

Outside of Switzerland, liabilities to

to cover other doubtful accounts

pension funds are covered by insur-

receivable.

ance-based plans, or pension liabil-

Purchased intangible assets are

basis

where

ities recorded in accordance with

recorded at cost and depreciated
Raw materials, consumables and

years. Internally created intangible

goods for resale are recorded at

assets are not capitalized. Further,

cost (purchase costs plus related

Income and capital taxes were cor-

neither research nor organizational

procurement

in

rectly accrued and posted and are

costs are capitalized.

progress and finished goods are

disclosed in accordance with in-

valued at production cost. Produc-

dustry practices.

Land is recorded at cost.
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actuarial calculations are recorded.

straight-line over a maximum of five

costs);

work

tion costs include direct raw material costs as well as an allocation of

Provisions for deferred taxation

Buildings, machinery and equip-

indirect material and production

were calculated using the compre-

ment are recorded at cost (as is in-

costs (including depreciation of

hensive

ventory) and depreciated straight-

production equipment). The per-

method takes into account the ef-

line over their expected real service

centage of completion method for

fects on current taxation expenses,

lives.

recognizing costs and revenue is

of timing differences which arose

applied to long-term production

due to differences in the value of

liability

method.

This

assets and liabilities for accounting
purposes and for tax purposes. The
deferred taxation is calculated applying rates of taxation ruling in the
applicable country.
On the level of the individual subsidiaries the difference in valuation
was offset with the tax losses carried forward. Deferred tax assets
were not capitalized. Deferred tax
on retained earnings of subsidiaries
was immaterial and was therefore
not provided for.
Liabilities are recorded at face
value, regardless of due date. Discounts are capitalized and amortized over the life of the underlying
liabilities.

Extraordinary income and expense
items are disclosed separately in
order to allow for a proper assessment of the company’s sustainable
income generation potential.
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2.

Notes to the Consolidated Balance Sheet (in CHF million)

2.1 Total Assets
Assets are denominated in the following currencies:

1999/2000

%

1998/99

%

CHF

164.8

45

183.2

55

DEM

58.5

16

57.9

18

GBP

50.1

14

15.6

5

ATS

35.9

10

33.4

10

FRF

8.9

2

5.9

2

JPY

8.8

2

7.9

2

SGD/MYR/HKD

7.1

2

7.7

2

SEK

6.3

2

5.9

2

USD

6.3

2

5.1

2

ESP

6.1

2

3.8

1

AUD

4.8

1

NLG

3.7

1

2.5

1

ITL

3.5

1

1.2

0

BEF

1.3

0

1.5

0

Total

366.1

100

331.6

100

This position is categorized as follows:
Divisons:
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1999/2000

%

1998/99

%

Door Systems

134.9

37

94.1

28

Mechanical and Eletromechanical Locks

132.6

36

124.3

38

Access and Time Management Systems

57.5

16

56.5

17

Other

41.1

11

56.7

17

Total

366.1

100

331.6

100

2.2 Movement in fixed assets

30.6.1999 gross

Land
and
buildings

Machinery
and
equipment

108.1

65.7

Furniture Payments on
and account and
fixtures construction
in progress

80.0

0.8
0.9

Additions

1.3

5.5

11.9

Disposals

– 11.3

– 1.6

– 4.9

Intangible
assets

Financial
assets

Total

10.0

26.1

290.7

1.6

0.2

21.4

– 0.9

– 18.7

– 37.4

Transfers

0.4

0.1

0.3

– 0.7

– 0.1

0.0

Currency translation effects

0.2

0.2

– 0.6

– 0.1

– 0.2

– 0.5

10.0

4.8

98.7

79.9

91.5

Accumulated depreciation at 30.6.1999 32.5

Deconsolidation

0.0

Changes in Group organization
30.6.2000 gross

0.9

0.1

14.9

10.4

7.7

289.1

2.7

141.6

44.7

56.7

5.0

Additions

2.4

4.9

8.1

1.8

17.2

Disposals

– 4.1

– 1.3

– 4.5

– 0.9

– 10.8

Transfers

0.2

– 0.1

– 0.1

0.0

Currency translation effects

0.1

– 0.5

– 0.1

– 0.4

0.1

Deconsolidation

0.0

Changes in Group organization

7.6

3.9

Accumulated depreciation at 30.6.2000 31.1

56.0

63.6

30.6.1999 net

75.6

21.0

23.3

30.6.2000 net

67.6

23.9

27.9

11.5
5.7

2.7

159.1

0.8

5.0

23.4

149.1

0.9

4.7

5.0

130.0

Of the net book value of fixed assets, a total of 2.2 CHF million is financed under leasing contracts. The respective liabilities amount to 1.2 CHF million.

2.3 Financial assets

30. 6.2000

30. 6.1999

Advance financing deposit participations

0.0

18.6

Loans to associated companies

2.9

2.7

Loans to third parties

0.6

0.8

Other securities

1.5

1.3

Total

5.0

23.4

The associated companies are listed on page 48.
Loans to associated companies represent an interest-free loan to Ruchser + Aubry AG, a real estate company
which is not consolidated.
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2.4 Inventory

30. 6.2000

30. 6.1999

Raw materials

24.6

19.6

Work in progress

50.1

37.0

Finished goods

18.1

15.4

0.3

0.7

93.1

72.7

Prepayments made to suppliers
Total

2.5 Trade accounts receivable
Trade accounts receivable are net of allowances for bad debts of 4.1 CHF million (previous year: 1.9 CHF million).

2.6 Other receivables
Included in other receivables are almost exclusively tax receivables.

2.7 Marketable securities

30. 6.2000

30. 6.1999

Own shares

2.1

0.5

Other securities

0.4

0.2

Total

2.5

0.7

Concerning own shares see financial statements of Kaba Holding AG.
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2.8 Changes in equity

1999/2000

1998/99

117.9

104.0

– 0.7

– 0.7

117.2

103.3

– 7.0

– 6.5

Net income

34.5

27.7

Currency translation adjustment

– 0.5

0.0

– 29.5

– 6.8

0.2

0.2

114.9

117.9

1999/2000

1998/99

58.4

54.9

End of previous year

Currency translation adjustment
End of previous year (new currency rates applied)
Dividends paid

Goodwill
Other
Equity end of current year
Goodwill
End of previous year
Goodwill upon acquisition

29.5

6.8

Amortization

– 4.8

– 3.3

Equity end of current year

83.1

58.4

1999/2000

1998/99

41.7

45.4

2.1

0.5

Currency translation adjustment

– 5.9

– 4.7

Total

37.9

41.2

2.9 Retained earnings
Retained earnings
Reserve for own shares

In addition to undistributed earnings, retained earnings include those differences resulting from the elimination of
investments in subsidiaries against the Group’s share of subsidiaries’ equity at the time of initial consolidation.
The differences are primarily increases to retained earnings, with decreases recorded only in limited instances.
Owner’s equity at July 1, 1992, is used as the base for consolidation for those subsidiaries which belonged to the
scope of consolidation when these consolidation principles were first applied to the Group.
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2.10 Provisions
Provisions for taxes include deferred taxes of 15.1 CHF million (previous year: 15.5 CHF million).
Other provisions include:
Personnel liabilities
Expenses related to planned restructuring

30.6.2000

30.6.1999

26.5

21.5

1.9

1.0

Millenium problem

1.5

Other

15.5

9.8

Total

43.9

33.8

The other provisions primarily include such items as uninvoiced trade accounts payable from third parties, as well
as guarantees and customer rebates.

2.11 Long-term liabilities
Position

Bank loans
Other long-term liabilities (loans)

30.6.2000

30.6.1999

Total

Total

35.6

40.1

due date
<1

1 to 5

>5

year

years

years

15.4

18.1

2.1

5.1

0.5

0.1

5.7

1.9

20.5

18.6

2.2

41.3

42.0

30. 6.2000

%

30. 6.1999

%

CHF

20.0

56

27.3

68

GBP

8.8

25

5.1

13

ATS

6.4

18

7.0

18

SEK

0.3

1

0.6

1

Total

Bank loans are denominated in the following currencies:

FRF

0.1

0

0.1

0

Total

35.6

100

40.1

100

Of the bank loans, the fixed interest rates for 15.8 CHF million are between 3.5 and 4.85%. These loans will be
repaid between 4.3.2002 and 1.7.2004.
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2.12 Short-term liabilities

30. 6.2000

30. 6.1999

38.9

22.5

58.9

54.7

Trade accounts payable:
due to third parties
Due to banks
Other short-term liabilities:
Advances

6.0

6.1

Due to pension plan

0.2

0.1

Taxes payable

5.7

5.2

Social security payable

2.4

2.5

Other

4.1

2.5

7.2

6.6

123.4

100.2

Accruals
Total

Liabilities which are payable within one year are considered short-term. The portion of long-term liabilities which
is due within one year is included in long-term liabilities and shown separately.

Due to banks are denominated in the following currencies:
30. 6.2000

%

30. 6.1999

%

CHF

20.0

34

13.3

24

DEM

9.6

16

17.5

32

ATS

6.2

11

4.6

9

JPY

4.5

8

5.6

10

GBP

4.4

7

2.8

5

SGD

4.0

7

3.5

6

ESP

3.1

5

2.0

4

USD

2.8

5

2.5

5

AUD

2.1

4

MYR

0.9

2

0.8

1

SEK

0.8

1

1.5

3

FRF

0.2

0

0.0

0

HKD

0.2

0

NLG

0.1

0

0.6

1

Total

58.9

100

54.7

100

Most of the other short-term liabilities are interest free.
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3.

Notes to the Consolidated Income Statement (in CHF million)

3.1 Sales (net)
This position is categorized as follows:
Divisions:
Door Systems

1999/2000

%

1998/99

%

229.9

44

131.1

33

Mechanical and Electromechanical Locks

155.1

29

145.7

37

Access and Time Management Systems

141.5

27

117.3

30

Total

526.5

100

394.1

100

Geographic regions:

1999/2000

%

1998/99

%

Switzerland

196.1

37

183.2

47

Germany

113.5

22

97.2

25

Other EU- and EEA countries

192.1

36

95.0

24

Far East

19.0

4

13.7

3

USA

5.8

1

5.0

1

Total

526.5

100

394.1

100

In nominal values, sales have increased by 132.4 CHF million, respectively 33.6%, from 394.1 CHF million to
526.5 CHF million. Thereof, 84.9 CHF million are a consequence of the increase in scope of consolidation. The
weakening of the Swiss Franc, especially as against the Asian currencies, has increased net sales in the former
scope of consolidation by 2.8 CHF million or 0.7%. Real growth (adjusted by changes in currency rates) in our
former business therefore amounted to 44.7 CHF million or 11.3%.

3.2 Other operating revenues

1999/2000

1998/99

Releases of restructuring provisions

1.6

0.6

Rent

2.0

2.1

Capitalized assets produced by the company

0.9

0.4

Income from disposal of fixed assets

1.1

2.0

Other revenues (licenses, personnel restaurant, etc.)
Total

3.3 Material costs
Material costs
Contracted services and labor
Total
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6.8

7.0

12.4

12.1

1999/2000

1998/99

147.6

94.8

26.8

19.9

174.4

114.7

3.4 Personnel costs
Salaries and wages
Pension costs
Social security costs
Total

1999/2000

1998/99

172.7

137.8

5.1

4.4

24.4

19.8

202.1

162.0

Employer contributions of the Swiss Kaba companies amounting to 2.9 CHF million (previous year 3.8 CHF million)
were absorbed by existing employer contribution reserves as well as by the welfare instituti-on of the Kaba companies.
Average number of employees per division:

1999/2000

%

1998/99

%

Door Systems

1130

42

664

31

Mechanical and Electromechanical Locks

1029

38

987
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Access and Time Management Systems

520

19

464

22

20

1

20

1

2699

100

2135

100

1999/2000

%

1998/99

%

914

34

876

41

Other
Total
Average number of employees per geographic region:
Switzerland
Germany
Other EU- and EEA countries
Far East

550

20

506

24

1104

41

652

31

102

4

72

3

USA

29

1

29

1

Total

2699

100

2135

100

Employees at June 30, 2000: Balance sheet date totalled 2757 (2147 at June 30, 1999).

3.5 Depreciation
Depreciation is recorded on fixed and intangible assets.

3.6 Other operating expenses
This position includes primarily production costs, management, and operational expenses, as well as expenses
expected to promote revenue in future years (i.e. research; advertising). Losses on sales of fixed assets of 0.3
CHF million (1998/99: 0.4 CHF million) are also included.
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3.7 Financial income

1999/2000

1998/99

Income from other financial assets

0.1

0.1

Other financial income

2.5

1.0

Total

2.6

1.1

1999/2000

1998/99

Current

11.9

7.1

Deferred

– 0.4

1.4

1.8

0.6

13.3

9.1

Other financial income includes primarily interest income.

3.8 Financial expense
This position is exclusively interest expense.

3.9 Taxes
Taxes on operational income:

Other taxes
Total

Losses for taxation purposes existed in various group companies at June 30, 2000, and may be set off, either in
full or in part, against future profits.
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4. Note

to

the

consolidated

5. Additional information

period exists in conjunction with

cash flow statement

the acquisition of the English door

Net cash provided by operating ac-

5.1 Pledged liabilities

companies. It becomes effective

tivities (46.9 CHF million) less divi-

On 30.6.2000, liabilities totalling

once a profit margin of about 10%

dends paid (7.0 CHF million) – net

13.0 CHF million (30.6.1999 23.1

on the original purchase price has

39.9 CHF million – exceeded net

CHF million) were secured by

been attained, applies to the profit

cash used in investing activities in-

pledged assets (land and build-

portion which exceeds 10% and is

cluding financial assets (net 22.1

ings). Thanks to the group’s liquidi-

limited to 11 GBP million.

CHF million) by 17.8 CHF million.

ty situation, it was able to pay back

The sale of non-operational real es-

liabilities to the extent mentioned

tate (8.5 CHF million) had a liquidi-

before.

5.5 Derivative financial
instruments

ty-improving effect.

As at June 30, 2000 a forward

5.2 Other financial liabilities and
commitments

exchange contract worth 4.1 CHF
million existed for hedging purpo-

Payments due over the next three

ses. It has neither a materially signi-

years on rental contracts are (CHF

ficant positive nor a negative repla-

million): 7.9 2000/2001, 7.5 2001/

cement value.

2002 and 5.6 2002/2003.
5.6 Research and development/

Amounts due for payment under

licenses

non-capitalized leasing contracts

Expenditures for research and de-

are (CHF million): 1.7 in 2000/2001,

velopment activities are expensed

1.0

in the year incurred. Research re-

in

2001/

2002,

0.5

in

2002/2003, and 0.1 in later years

sults are partially licensed to third
parties for use, in order that during

5.3 Related Parties

a limited time frame market cover-

There are no significant transac-

age and number of pieces are in-

tions or balances with related par-

creased.

ties.
5.7 Subsequent events

5.4 Contingencies

No events have occurred since June

Current

endorsement

amount

to

3.2

liabilities

30, 2000 which would significantly

million

impact the 1999/00 financial state-

CHF

(30.6.1999 1.3 CHF million).

ments.

A result-dependent additional payment obligation covering a five-year
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Legal Structure of the Kaba Group

List of group and associated companies

authorized
share capital (1000)

voting rights
in %

Kaba Holding AG, Rümlang/CH

CHF

22 450

Kaba Gilgen AG, Schwarzenburg/CH

CHF

2 000

100,0

1)

Kaba Gallenschütz GmbH, Bühl/DE

DEM

5 000

100,0

3)

Kaba Door Systems Ltd, Telford/GB

GBP

0.002

100,0

11)

Kaba Nederland bv, Nijmegen/NL

NLG

500

100,0

1)

Kaba Belgium nv, Turnhout/BE

BEF

1 250

100,0

1)9)

Kaba Türsysteme GmbH, Bühl/DE

DEM

500

100,0

10)

Kaba Porte Automatiche srl, Novedrate/IT

ITL

190 000

100,0

1)

Vega Ltd, Warrington/GB

GBP

5

100,0

11)

Kaba Schliesssysteme AG, Wetzikon/CH

CHF

6 800

100,0

1)

Kaba Gege GmbH, Herzogenburg/AT

ATS

11 500

100,0

1)

Kaba (UK) Ltd, Tiverton/GB

GBP

0.002

100,0

11)

Kaba Abax AB, Eskilstuna/SE

SEK

13 000

100,0

1)

Iberkaba SA, Valencia/ES

ESP

40 000

100.0

1)

Kaba High Security Locks, Southington/US

USD

91

100,0

5)

Nihon Kaba K.K., Yokohama/JP

JPY

120 000

100,0

6)

Kaba Security Pte Ltd, Singapore/SG

SGD

1 540

100,0

6)

Kaba Suomi Oy, Helsinki/SF

FIM

268

100,0

7)

Kaba Boyd Pty Ltd, Riverwood/AU

AUD

1 500

51,0

6)

Kaba Limited, Hong Kong/HK

HKD

4 750

100,0

4)

Door Systems (S-1)

Mechanical and Electromechanical Locks (S-2)

As per 30.6.2000
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List of group and associated companies

authorized
share capital (1000)

voting rights
in %

Bauer Bank- & Sicherheitsanlagen Ges.m.b.H., Salzburg/AT

ATS

500

100,0

2)

Kaba Benzing GmbH, Villingen-Schwenningen/DE

DEM

5 600

100,0

3)

Kaba Benzing GmbH, Wien/AT

ATS

500

100,0

12)

Kaba Benzing (Schweiz) AG, Dietikon/CH

CHF

400

100,0

1)

Kaba Benzing, Inc., Southington/US

USD

50

100,0

5)

Access and Time Management Systems (S-3)

Legic Identsystems, Wetzikon/CH

8)

Kaba Baxess, Rümlang/CH

8)

Kaba Security AG, Rümlang/CH

CHF

7 600

100,0

1)

Kaba Service Deutschland GmbH, Dreieich/Frankfurt/DE

DEM

400

100,0

3)

Kaba Systems GmbH, Dreieich/DE

DEM

750

100,0

3)

Kaba S.à.r.l., Suresnes/FR

FRF

2 300

100,0

1)

Kaba srl, Bologna/IT

ITL

500 000

70,0

6)

Finance and Controlling (S-4)
Kaba Finance Ltd, St. Helier/Jersey/GB

DEM

31

100,0

1)

Kaba Holding GmbH, Villingen-Schwenningen/DE

DEM

6 000

100,0

1)

Kaba Holding (UK) Ltd, London/GB

GBP

6 000

100,0

1)

Kaba Corporation, Southington/US

USD

8

100,0

6)

Bauer AG, Rümlang/CH

CHF

50

100,0

1)

Ruchser + Aubry AG, Muri/CH (Immobilien)

CHF

2 000

99,9

2)

1) Participation of Kaba Holding AG, Rümlang/CH
2) Participation of Kaba Security AG, Rümlang/CH
3) Participation of Kaba Holding GmbH, Villingen-Schwenningen/DE
4) Participation of Kaba Gilgen AG, Schwarzenburg/CH
5) Participation of Kaba Corporation, Southington/US
6) Participation of Kaba Schliesssysteme AG, Wetzikon/CH
7) Participation of Kaba Abax AB, Eskilstuna/SE
8) Profit center of Kaba Schliesssysteme AG, Wetzikon/CH
9) Participation of Kaba Nederland bv, Nijmegen/NL
10) Participation of Kaba Systems GmbH, Dreieich/DE
11) Participation of Kaba Holding (UK) Ltd, London/GB
12) Participation of Kaba Gege GmbH, Herzogenburg/AT
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Report of the group auditors
to the General Meeting of
Kaba Holding AG, Rümlang

As auditors of the group, we have audited the consolidated financial statements (balance
sheet, income statement, cash flow statement, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements/pages 30 to 49 of the Kaba group for the year ended June 30, 2000.
These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the board of directors.
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements
based on our audit. We confirm that we meet the legal requirements concerning professional qualification and independence.
Our audit was conducted in accordance with auditing standards promulgated by the profession in Switzerland, which require that an audit be planned and performed to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from
material misstatement. We have examined on a test basis evidence supporting the
amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. We have also assessed
the accounting principles used, significant estimates made and the overall consolidated
financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a rea-sonable basis
for our opinion.
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position, the results of operations and the cash flows in accordance with the Accounting and Reporting Recommendations in Switzerland (ARR) and comply with the law.
We recommend that the consolidated financial statements submitted to you be approved.
PricewaterhouseCoopers Ltd

P. Binz

Zurich, September 1, 2000
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Holding Company Balance Sheet
Assets

Balance Sheet as at

30.6.2000
CHF

30.6.1999
CHF

1 338 286

422 808

721 600

552 394

153 995 592

134 770 151

0

17 579 800

156 055 478

153 325 153

641 172

4 251 049

24 129 117

5 706 526

4 563

52 114

4 145 655

797 664

28 920 507

10 807 353

184 975 985

164 132 506

Long-term assets
Intangible assets
Fixed assets
Furniture and fixtures
Financial assets
Investments
Other financial assets
Total long-term assets

Current assets
Receivables
Third parties
Group companies
Accruals
Cash, cash equivalents and securities
Total current assets

Total assets
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Shareholders’ equity and liabilities

Balance Sheet as at

30.6.2000
CHF

30.6.1999
CHF

22 450 000

22 450 000

56 134 967

56 134 967

2 056 933

539 885

8 543 067

10 060 115

33 889 558

24 813 535

123 074 525

113 998 502

14 286 524

14 398 131

Bank loans

15 000 000

15 000 000

Total long-term liabilities

15 000 000

15 000 000

12 199 453

686 038

1 468 822

737 835

16 692 922

17 241 335

2 253 739

2 070 665

32 614 936

20 735 873

184 975 985

164 132 506

Shareholders’ equity
Capital stock
Legal reserves
General reserve
Reserve for own shares
Other reserves
Unappropriated retained earnings
Total shareholders’ equity

Provisions

long-term liabilities

Short-term liabilities
Due to banks
Other short-term liabilities
Third parties
Group companies
Accruals
Total short-term liabilities

Total shareholders’ equity and liabilties
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Holding Company Income Statement
and Appropriation of Profit

Statement of income for the period

1.7.1999–30.6.2000

1.9.1998–30.6.1999

CHF

(short period) CHF

20 135 356

14 360 883

7 976 090

7 996 499

375 955

157 547

28 487 401

22 514 929

Personnel costs

– 4 545 179

– 4 230 465

Other operating expenses

– 4 614 822

– 3 918 379

Financial expense

– 2 754 893

– 1 110 945

– 192 892

– 14 174

16 379 615

13 240 966

– 287 967

– 293 097

16 091 648

12 947 869

24 813 535

18 320 041

by general meeting: Dividend

– 7 015 625

– 6 454 375

Unappropriated retained earnings at the end of the period

33 889 558

24 813 535

Operating revenues
Financial income
Proceeds from services
Other operating revenues
Total operating revenues
Operating expenses

Taxation
Net income for the period before depreciation
Depreciation
Depreciation on intangible and tangible fixed assets
Net income for the period
Unappropriated retained earnings
at the beginning of the period
Appropriations of retained earnings resolved

Proposal of the Board of Directors for appropriation of retained earnings at June 30, 2000
The Board of Directors proposes the following appropriation: Distribution of a gross dividend to CHF
8 755 500 (CHF 7 015 625 in the prior year) on the share capital of CHF 22 450 000 (CHF 22 450 000 in the prior
year).

2000
CHF

1999
CHF

8 755 500

7 015 625

To be carried forward

25 134 058

17 797 910

Unappropriated retained earnings

33 889 558

24 813 535

Dividend

After approval of this proposal the dividend will be paid out net as follows according to instructions received:
CHF 15.60 (12.50 in the prior year) gross per listed registered share at CHF 40.– par value. 35% withholding tax
is going to be deducted.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

1. Fire insurance values:

30.6.2000
CHF

30.6.1999
CHF

Plant and equipment

1 608 000

1 561 000

2. Investments: Company, Business, Country

Nominal Capital
in 1000

Bauer AG, Finance and Controlling, Rümlang CH

CHF

50

100,0

Iberkaba SA, Mechanical and Electromechanical Locks, Valencia E

ESP

140 000

100,0

Kaba Abax AB, Mechanical and Electromechanical Locks, Eskilstuna S

SEK

13 000

100,0

Kaba Belgium nv, Door Systems, Turnhout B

BEF

1 250

94,0

Kaba Benzing (Schweiz) AG, Access and Time Management Systems,

CHF

400

100,0

DEM

31

100,0

Interest
in %

Dietikon CH
Kaba Finance Ltd, Finance and Controlling, Jersey GB
Kaba Gege GmbH, Mechanical and Electromechanical Locks,
Herzogenburg A

ATS

11 500

100,0

Kaba Gilgen AG, Door Systems, Schwarzenburg CH

CHF

2 000

100,0

Kaba Holding GmbH, Finance and Controlling, Villingen-Schwenningen D

DEM

6 000

100,0

Kaba Holding (UK) Ltd, Finance and Controlling, London GB

GBP

6 000

100,0

Kaba Nederland bv, Door Systems, Nijmegen NL

NLG

500

100,0

Kaba Porte Automatiche srl, Novedrate I in foundation

ITL

190 000

100,0

Kaba Schliesssysteme AG, Mechanical and Electromechanical Locks,
Wetzikon CH

CHF

6 800

100,0

Kaba Systèmes de Portes S.à.r.l., Door Systems, Haguenau F

FRF

2 300

100,0

Kaba Security AG, Access and Time Management Systems, Rümlang CH

CHF

7 600

100,0

3. Liabilities to pension funds

30.6.2000
CHF

30.6.1999
CHF

0

19 816

Liabilities to pension funds

4. Capital stock

Registered shares

30.6.2000
Number
Par
561 250

40

CHF
22 450 000

30.6.1999
Number
Par
561 250

40

CHF
22 450 000
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5. Significant Shareholdings
The following holders of registered shares each own interests of 5% or more in the voting share capital:

30.6.2000

30.6.1999

Forrer Karin

9.95%

9.95%

Bremi Ulrich

7.43%

7.43%

Kuenzle Creed

5.68%

5.68%

In May 1998, Henderson Investors, London, complied with the Swiss Exchange Law and announced that it holds
5.29% of Kaba shares. According to a statement dated April 26, 2000, Henderson Investors owns 9.92% of Kaba. Henderson is a British asset management company which belongs to the AMP insurance group of Australia.
Henderson has stated that it pursues purely financial objectives.

6. Guarantees in favour of group companies

30.6.2000
CHF

30.6.1999
CHF

Guarantees

63 651 633

24 899 970

thereof used

43 427 198

22 148 150

7. Own shares

1999/2000
CHF

Number

1998/1999
CHF

Number

539 885

890

170 550

350

Purchased

2 405 460

1 664

423 009

630

Sold

– 888 412

– 949

– 53 674

– 90

Own shares at the end of the period

2 056 933

1 605

539 885

890

Own shares at the beginning of the period

8. Share capital increases

30.6.2000
CHF

30.6.1999
CHF

Authorized capital

0

2 000 000

Conditional capital

3 800 000

200 000

As per the Annual General Meeting from October 27, 1998 it was resolved to change the year-end closing from
August 31 to June 30. Therefore the figures of the income statement of the previous year only reflect a period of
10 months.
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Report of the statuory auditors
to the General Meeting
of Kaba Holding AG, Rümlang

As statutory auditors, we have audited the accounting records and the financial statements (balance sheet, income statement and notes) of Kaba Holding AG for the year ended June 30, 2000.
These financial statements are the responsibility of the board of directors.
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements
based on our audit. We confirm that we meet the legal requirements concerning professional qualification and independence.
Our audit was conducted in accordance with auditing standards promulgated by the profession in Switzerland, which require that an audit be planned
and performed to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free from material misstatement. We have examined on a test
basis evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. We have also assessed the accounting principles used, significant estimates made and the overall financial statement presentation. We believe
that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.
In our opinion, the accounting records and the financial statements and the
proposed appropriation of retained earnings comply with the law and the
company's articles of incorporation.
We recommend that the financial statements submitted to you be approved.
PricewaterhouseCoopers Ltd

P. Binz

F. Blaser

Zurich, September 1, 2000
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Comments on the Financial Statements
of Kaba Holding AG

Balance Sheet

short year. Taking account of this

The development of the Invest-

The

ments item is characterised by the

Group companies have increased

Accounts

receivable

from

dropped compared with the previ-

take-over of the British door sys-

by the loan amount (CHF 18.4 mil-

ous year.

tems companies: In all, CHF 19.2

lion) for financing the take-overs in

million has been invested. CHF

Britain from CHF 5.7 million in the

The increase in Financial expense

12.4 million of this has been used

previous year to CHF 24.1 million in

from CHF 1.1 million to CHF 2.8

to endow the equity capital for the

the year under review.

million in connection with the afore-

difference

in

time,

they

have

mentioned increase in Financial

new British Kaba Holding (UK) Ltd.
A further CHF 4.5 million increased

The

the liquidity of the Jersey-based fi-

strengthened

annual

nancial company. With this amount

equity.

profit
the

further

revenue reflects the increase in im-

Shareholders’

has

portance of the Swiss Holding as a
financial hub in connection with the
Group's take-overs of companies.

the latter financed the take-over of
the French and Dutch subsidiaries

The rise in Bank liabilities reflects

of the British Adtek by Kaba com-

the financing of the take-overs in

The Net income for the period

panies. Finally, the capital of Kaba

Britain, France, Holland and Aus-

shown rose to CHF 16.1 million

Gege GmbH, Herzogenburg, was

tria.

(previous year: CHF 12.9 million).

increased in connection with its
take-over

of

Czeiger

The dividend paid by the Holding is

Benzing

Profit and Loss account

based on the Consolidated net in-

The Financial income includes the

come. On account of the Group's

In the previous year, the CHF 17.6

revenue from the investments as

better consolidated results in the fi-

million of Other financial assets re-

well as the income from interest.

nancial year 1999/2000 and the ex-

sulted from advance payments in

Thanks to the subsidiaries' good

pected further improvement of the

connection with the take-over of

course of business and the Hold-

same, the Board of Directors is ap-

the companies in Britain. In the year

ing's good liquidity situation, both

plying to increase the dividend to

under review, this item was com-

items together increased by CHF

CHF 15.60 (previous year: CHF

pletely restructured into invest-

5.7 million from CHF 14.4 million to

12.50) per registered share of a par

ments and loans.

CHF 20.1 million.

value of CHF 40.

GmbH, Vienna.

Receivables

from

third

parties

(claims for reimbursement of with-

The Proceeds from services show
the Holding's billed services.

holding tax) was reduced from CHF
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4.3 million in the previous year to

Personnel costs and Other operat-

CHF 0.6 million on the fixed date

ing expenses of the previous year

for closing.

included just the 10 months of the

Operative Structure of the Kaba Group

Business Development
Ulrich Graf

Kaba Holding AG
Kaba Management + Consulting AG
Rümlang/CH
Ulrich Graf

Division 4
Finance and Controlling
Dr. W. Stadelmann

Division 1

Division 2

Division 3

Door Systems
Automation Center of Competence
Sönke Bandixen

Mechanical and Electromechanical Locks
Mechatronics Center of Competence
Heribert Allemann

Access and Time Management Systems
Electronics Center of Competence
Ulrich Wydler

Kaba Gilgen AG
Schwarzenburg/CH
Production, Distribution, Service

Kaba Schliesssysteme AG
Wetzikon/CH
Production, Distribution

Kaba Benzing GmbH
Villingen-Schwenningen/D
Production, Distribution

Kaba Ltd.
Hongkong
Distribution

Kaba Gege GmbH
Herzogenburg/A
Production, Distribution

Kaba Benzing (Schweiz) AG
Dietikon/CH
Installation, Distribution

Kaba Türsysteme GmbH
Bühl/D
Distribution, Service

Kaba (UK) Ltd
Tiverton/GB
Production, Distribution

Kaba Benzing GmbH
Wien/A
Installation, Distribution

Kaba Gallenschütz GmbH
Bühl/D
Production, Distribution international

Kaba Abax AB
Eskilstuna/S
Production, Distribution

Kaba Benzing Inc.
Southington, CT/USA
Distribution

Kaba Door Systems Ltd
Telford/GB
Production, Distribution, Service

Iberkaba SA
Valencia/E
Installation, Distribution

Kaba srl
Castel Maggiore/I
Installation, Distribution

Garog (Vega Ltd)
Warrington/GB
Trade

Kaba High Security Locks Corp.
Southington/CT/USA
Production, Distribution

Kaba Baxess
Rümlang/CH
Development, Production

Kaba Nederland bv
Nijmegen/NL
Distribution , Service

Nihon Kaba K.K.
Yokohama/J
Production, Distribution

Kaba Security AG
Rümlang/CH
Production, Distribution, Service

Kaba Belgium nv
Turnhout/B
Distribution , Service

Kaba Security Pte Ltd
Singapore
Distribution, Service

Kaba Systems GmbH
Dreieich/D
Distribution

Kaba Porte Automatiche srl
Novedrate/I
Distribution, Service

Kaba Security Pte Ltd
Malaysia
Distribution, Service

Kaba S.à.r.l.
Suresnes/F
Installation, Distribution

Kaba Boyd Pty Ltd
Riverwood/AUS
Production, Distribution

Legic Identsystems
Wetzikon/CH
Production, Distribution, Service,
Licencing

valid from 1.7.2000
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Addresses Kaba Group

Kaba Holding AG
Hofwisenstrasse 24
8153 Rümlang
Tel. ++41 1 818 90 11
Fax ++41 1 818 90 18
info@kaba.com
www.kaba.com

Kaba Gilgen AG
Freiburgstrasse 34
CH-3150 Schwarzenburg
Tel. ++41 31 734 41 11
Fax ++41 31 734 43 79
www.kaba-gilgen.ch
GM: Jakob Gilgen

Garog
Leacroft Road
Birchwood
GB-Warrington WA3 6GG
Tel. ++44 1925 825 225
Fax ++44 1925 820 347
GM: Mike Farmer

Kaba Limited
Unit 403, 4/F Kerry Cargo Centre
55 Wing Kei Road
Kwat Chung, N.T.
Hong Kong
Tel. ++852 2375 6110
Fax ++852 2406 2602
GM: Bernhard Spring

Kaba Nederland BV
Tarweweg 9A
Postbus 6666
NL-6503 GD Nijmegen
Tel. ++31 24 352 3333
Fax ++31 24 354 02 11
www.kaba.nl
GM: Gerard H.A. Brandsen

Kaba Türsysteme GmbH
Nikolaus-Otto-Strasse 1
DE-77815 Bühl
Tel. ++49 7223 9407 0
Fax ++49 7223 9407 100
www.kaba-tuersysteme.de
GM: Dr. Ekkehard Kleine

Kaba Belgium NV/SA
Steenweg op Gierle 339 F
BE-2300 Turnhout
Tel. ++32 14 44 80 44
Fax ++32 14 44 80 40
GM: Gerard H.A. Brandsen

Kaba Gallenschütz GmbH
Nikolaus-Otto-Strasse 1
DE-77815 Bühl
Tel. ++49 7223 286 0
Fax ++49 7723 286 111
www.kaba-gallenschuetz.de
GM: Josef Schorn

Kaba Porte Automatiche srl
Via Cesare Cantu 70
IT-22060 Novedrate (CO)
Tel. ++39 031 791 444
Fax ++39 031 791 888
GM: Filippo Giudice

Kaba Door Systems Ltd
Halesfield 4
Telford
GB-Shropshire TF7 4AP
Tel. ++44 1952 68 21 00
Fax ++44 1952 68 21 01
GM: Mike Farmer
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Kaba Management + Consulting AG
Hofwisenstrasse 24
8153 Rümlang
Tel. ++41 1 818 90 11
Fax ++41 1 818 90 18
info@kaba.com
www.kaba.com

Kaba Schliesssysteme AG
Mühlebühlstrasse 23
CH-8620 Wetzikon
Tel. ++41 1 931 61 11
Fax ++41 1 931 63 85
www.ksw.kaba.com
GM: Gerhard Wenger (Base Production
Centre)
GM: George Ulmschneider (Regional
Sales and Service Centre Switzerland)
Kaba Gege GmbH
Wiener Strasse 41–43
AT-3130 Herzogenburg
Tel. ++43 2782 808 0
Fax ++43 2782 808 5505
www.kgh.kaba.com
GM: Hans Weissenböck
Kaba (UK) Ltd
Lower Moor Way
Tiverton Business Park
GB-Tiverton, Devon EX16 6SS
Tel. ++44 1884 256 464
Fax ++44 1884 234 415
www.kaba.co.uk
GM: Cameron M. McKay
Kaba Abax AB
Filargatan 12
SE-63105 Eskilstuna
Tel. ++46 16 16 15 00
Fax ++46 16 51 09 70
www.kaba.se
GM: Jan O. Ekman
Iberkaba SA
Cirilo Amoros 77
ES-46004 Valencia
Tel. ++34 96 395 10 97
Fax ++34 96 373 89 63
GM: Magí Guardiola Stöcklin

Kaba High Security Locks Corp.
384 Old Turnpike Road
P.O. Box 490
US-Southington, CT 06489
Tel. ++1 860 621 36 01
Fax ++1 860 621 97 27
www.kabausa.com
GM: Thomas DiVito
Nihon Kaba K.K.
405B, German Industry Center
1-18-2 Hakusan, Midori-ku
JP-Yokohama 226-0006
Tel. ++81 45 931 8900
Fax ++81 45 931 9100
www.kaba.co.jp
GM: Kaishiro Kato
Kaba Security Pte Ltd
Block 203A, Henderson Road
#07-03, Henderson Industrial Park
SGP-159547 Singapore
Tel. ++65 275 12 11
Fax ++65 275 12 33
www.kaba.com.sg
GM: Roland Teo Tok Chin
Kaba Security Pte Ltd
(Malaysia Branch) (993575 D)
No. 9 First Floor
Jalan USJ 10/1A, Taipan, Triangle,
Subang Jaya
47620 Petaling Jaya
Selangor Darul Ehsan
Malaysia
Tel. ++60 3 736 06 11
Fax ++60 3 736 06 33
GM: Roland Teo Tok Chin
Kaba Boyd Pty Ltd
137 Bonds Road
Riverwood NSW 2210
Australia
Tel. ++61 2 9534 5511
Fax ++61 2 9534 6434
GM: Heinrich Stünzi

Kaba Benzing GmbH
Albertistrasse 3
DE-78056 Villingen-Schwenningen
Tel. ++49 7720 603 0
Fax ++49 7720 603 102
www.kaba-benzing.com
GM: Bertram Schmitz

Kaba Security AG
Hofwisenstrasse 24
CH-8153 Rümlang
Tel. ++41 1 818 91 11
Fax ++41 1 818 91 91
www.kaba-security.com
GM: Marcel Zünd

Kaba Benzing (Schweiz) AG
Lerzenstrasse 12
CH-8953 Dietikon
Tel. ++41 1 745 15 15
Fax ++41 1 741 43 35
www.kaba-benzing.ch
GM: Hanspeter Padrutt

Kaba Systems GmbH
Frankfurter Strasse 151c
DE-63303 Dreieich
Tel. ++49 6103 9907 0
Fax ++49 6103 9907 299
GM: Michael Hensel
(Deputy GM: Dr. Reinhard Schramm)

Kaba Benzing GmbH
Dominikanerbastei 6
AT-1010 Wien
Tel. ++43 1 512 79 920
Fax ++43 1 512 79 9225
www.kaba-benzing.at
GM: Jörg Riedl

Kaba S.à.r.l.
9, 11 rue Pagès
FR-92150 Suresnes
Tel. ++33 141 38 98 60
Fax ++33 141 38 01 06
www.kaba-france.com
GM: Laurent Nuq

Kaba Benzing, Inc.
384 Old Turnpike Road
P.O. Box 490
US-Southington, CT 06489
Tel. ++1 860 628 3959
Fax ++1 860 621 9727
www.kaba-benzing.de/usa
GM: Bertram Schmitz

Legic Idensystems
Division of Kaba Schliesssysteme AG
Kastellstrasse 1
CH-8623 Wetzikon
Tel. ++41 1 933 64 64
Fax ++41 1 933 64 65
www.legic.com
GM: Guy Georges Petignat

Kaba srl
Via B. Buozzi, 33
IT-40013 Castel Maggiore (BO)
Tel. ++39 051 417 8311
Fax ++39 051 417 8333
GM: Dr. Angelo Vernocchi

As per September, 2000

Kaba Baxess
Hofwisenstrasse 24
CH-8153 Rümlang
Tel. ++41 1 818 93 11
Fax ++41 1 818 93 93
www.kaba.com/kbr
GM: Mike Segmüller
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Concept and Realization
Peter Bütikofer & Company, Zurich
Tricom AG, Zurich
Print
NZZ Fretz AG, Schlieren
Photography
Archives of Kaba Companies
Felix Eidenbenz, Uster
This Annual Report is also
published in German.

62

